AR

03056453

IR-F]-02

<)y
/Mﬂ/ﬁd’:’}(g,\/gej‘y o

D”D\,@h F

/’ A
APR 23 2003

[
m@u\/ ; h
A




QUR BACKGROUND: Cimarex was created as an outgrowth of the September 30, 2002,
spin off of Helmerich & Payne’s exploration and production division and simultaneous
merger with Denver-based Key Production Company, Inc. Qur name is derived from
the phrase “Cimarron exploration.” Both predecessor companies had long histories of
successful exploration in western Oklahoma, a part of which was once known as

Cimarron Territory.

While we may be a new company, we begin with a strong foundation. We have quality
assets, talented people and responsible core values. We also have good cash flow, iow
debt and a board of directors who are recognized for their business acumen and integrity.
Our objectives and strategies center around consistently building shareholder value
through exploration and development. We will supplement our growth from time to time

with acquisitions and other business development transactions that make economic sense.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and traded under the

ticker symbof "XEC.”

Information regarding forward-iooking statements is included in the accompanying Form 10-K.

ABBREVIATIONS

Mcf Thousand cubic feet (of natural gas) Bcfe Billion cubic feet equivalent
MMcf Million cubic feet Bbls Barrels (of oil)

MMcf/d  Million cubic feet per day Bbls/d Barrels per day

Bcf Billion cubic feet MMbbls Million barrels

Mcfe Thousand cubic feet equivalent /d Per Day

MMcfe  Million cubic feet equivalent

One barrel of oil is the energy equivalent
of six Mcf of natural gas.
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Proved Gas Reserves (MMcf)

Oklahoma/N. Texas 159,844
Hugoton 77,765
Permian Basin 38,247
Guif Coast 26,507
Western 16,264

318,627

Proved Oil Reserves (MBbls)

Oklahoma/N. Texas 3,667
Hugoton 2,454
Permian Basin 3,375
Gulf Coast 1,793
Western 3,736
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Fellow Stockhelders

It's with a strong sense of accomplishment and optimism that | write this initial
letter to the stockholders of Cimarex Energy Co. We are a new company that
begins with a strong foundation. We have quality assets, talented individuals,

and responsible core values.

Cimarex was launched on September 30, 2002, when Tulsa-based Helmerich & EH. Merelli
Payne spun off their exploration and production division into a new entity and Chairman, President &
merged it with Denver-based Key Production. Qur name is derived from the Chief Executive Officer

phrase Cimarron Exploration, a moniker that we were disappointed to learn
was not available to us because it was used elsewhere in our industry. We were
intrigued by this name because Helmerich & Payne and Key both had a long
history of oil and gas exploration in western Oklahoma, a part of which was
once known as Cimarron Territory.

Our annual report has all the usual comparisons of year-over-year financial and
operating results, but they are put together on a basis that treats Cimarex as if
it had been a stand-alone company prior to the spin-off; and then treats the
Key merger as an acquisition. Recognizing that there is no easily understandable
way to make apples-to-apples comparisons between reporting periods for
transactions like this, strict and explicit financial accounting standards are in
place for handling these matters and we have presented our financial statements
in accordance with those rules.

Thorough coverage of our financial results is contained in the accompanying
Form 10-K. However, we have summarized a few 2002 highlights because they
serve as useful benchmarks for where Cimarex begins.

> Net income was $39.8 million, or $1.31 per diluted share. Of that amount,
$15.8 million, or $0.38 per share, was earned in the fourth quarter after the
spin off and merger with Key.

> Cash flow from operating activities totaled $104.5 million and more than
funded $66.5 million of capital expenditures. Fourth-quarter cash flow was
$32.8 million.




CIMARRON TERRITORY:
Generaily the area now
known as the Oklahoma
Panhandle. Was settied by
cattle ranchers, many of
them squatters, in the early
1800s. To protect their claims
they attempted, in 1887, to
create a separate territorial
government at Beaver, Okla.
After subsequent efforts
toward this end failed in the
U.S. Congress, Cimarron
became part of the
Oklahoma Territory in 1890.
Cimarron County is the only
Cklahoma county that

borders Colorado.

Source: Columbia Encyclopedia, Sixth
Edition, Copyright 2003

> Full-year production volumes were 48.3 billion cubic feet (Bcf) of gas

equivalent. Fourth quarter output exceeded 16.5 Bcf equivalent.

> We drilled 110 wells with an 88 percent success rate. In the fourth quarter,
we drilled 36 wells.

> Through the necessary disruptions associated with the spin-off and merger,
we more than replaced combined company production and grew our proved
reserves to 409 Bcf equivalent.

> Year-end debt of only $32 million and stockholders’ equity of $445 million.

> On December 31, the market value of our 41.4 million shares of common
stock was $725 million. Our stock was listed on the New York Stock Exchange
and began trading on October 1, 2002 under the symbol "XEC.”

Apparent in 2002 results is the strong momentum gained in the fourth quarter.
Apart from beginning to run our operations under one roof, we benefited
from rising gas and oil prices. This occurred against a backdrop of an alarming
decline in U.S. gas deliverability, falling Canadian gas imports, worker strikes
affecting oil imports from Venezuela and the prospect of an Iraq war. A strong
upward bias in commodity prices has continued into early 2003, adding further
impetus to our earnings potential.

To boost our growth capacity, we are planning for a 40 percent increase in 2003
exploration and development expenditures to approximately $150 million. In
2002, Helmerich & Payne, Key, and Cimarex all together spent $105 miliion on
similar activities. Reflecting one of the more salient benefits of the combination,
roughly 60 percent of the 2003 budget will be directed toward the Mid-Continent
region of the U.S., where nearly two-thirds of the company’s proved reserves
and production are situated.

Having had the privilege of participating in this vital industry for roughly four
decades, | have seen many ups and downs in commodity prices. A long-term
upward trend has also been evident as higher prices became necessary to grow
oil and gas supplies at a rate commensurate with rising energy demand. So
despite the likelihood of continued volatitity, Cimarex will remain committed to
the belief that consistent profitable growth in proved reserves and production
can and should be achieved by those committed to enduring the cycles and
doing their part to supply reliable energy resources.

Cimarex’s business objectives and strategies will sound familiar to many of
our owners. We will focus on consistently building shareholider value through
exploration and development, supplementing our growth from time to time
with acquisitions and other business development transactions that make




economic sense. While we will not seek growth for the sake of growth alone,
our present financial capacity is underutilized. Hence we are expanding our
efforts to identify and acquire high quality assets that fit our operational
capabilities and long-term direction.

Recognizing that an uncertain geopolitical and economic environment can often
impede progress, we have a clear vision for creating value. We must profitably
increase proved reserves and production while maintaining financial flexibility.
We find ourselves well positioned to do just that because we begin with a quality
asset base, an active drilling program and a strong organization that melds the
talents and experience of its two predecessor companies. We also have good
cash flow, low debt and a board of directors who are recognized for their
business acumen and integrity.

Over the years, many things in our industry have changed and they will
probably change again. Some things, however, will remain the same.
Hydrocarbon resources will continue to play a pivotal role in the advancement
of worldwide economic growth and Cimarex will remain committed to its goal
of consistent profitable growth.

Respectfully,

F.H. Merelli
Chairman, President & CEO
March 21, 2003

Cimarex has a long history
of successful operations in

western Cklahoma.




tbat“they are adept at prospect generation, are rapable of using sophlstfcated exploratron

- tools and understand how to mitigate risks associated with oil and gas exploration.




Our core growth strategy centers on conducting a continually expanding moderate-risk
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Development of tight
gas reservoirs in
Oklahoma's Anadarko
Basin underpins our
moderate-risk drilling
program and helps
provide consistent

predictable results.

Operations Overview

At December 31, 2002, proved reserves totaled 409 Bcfe, consisting of 319 Bcf
of gas and 15 million barrels of oil. Of total proved reserves, 78 percent are gas
and 99.6 percent are classified as proved developed.

Aggregate 2002 production volumes averaged 132 MMcfe per day, up 2 percent
from fiscal 2001 output of 130 MMcfe. Reflecting the effect of the Key merger,
fourth quarter volumes averaged 180 MMcfe per day, comprised of 141.4 MMcf
per day of gas and 6,563 barrels per day of oil.

Our average realized gas price in 2002 was $2.91 per Mcf, which was 36 percent
lower than the $4.55 per Mcf gas price we received in fiscal 2001. Evidencing
the extreme volatility in energy prices experienced over the last few years, our
2001 gas price was 63 percent higher than our fiscal 2000 average gas price of
$2.79 per Mcf. Over this entire three-year period, we sold gas for as much as
$9.00 per Mcf and as little as $1.65 per Mcf. Since plummeting in September
2001, gas prices have been on a fairly steady upward course, reaching $3.60 per
Mcf during the fourth quarter of 2002.

Notwithstanding recent strength in oil prices stemming from global supply
disruptions and heightened tensions in the Middle East, our 2002 average
realized oil price was $24.91 per barrel versus $27.88 and $27.95 per barrel in
fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The present value, using a 10 percent discount rate, of the future net cash
flows before income taxes of Cimarex’s total proved reserves at the end of 2002
was $741.2 million. Year-end 2002 realized prices used in this calculation were
$4.22 per Mcf of gas and $28.56 per barrel of oil.

Exploration and Development

Exploration and development activities are focused in the Mid-Continent and
onshore Gulf Coast regions of the United States. We also have operations in
west Texas, California, Wyoming, North Dakota and Montana.






The multi-pay potential of
the Mid-Continent region

provides a strong base of

production operations.

The most significant area of concentration is in the Mid-Continent, which
accounts for over two-thirds of our proved reserves and production. We manage
these operations from Tulsa, Oklahoma.

In 2002, we drilled 70 gross wells in the Mid-Continent region and completed
98 percent of them as producers. The bulk of these wells were in the Anadarko
Basin of western Oklahoma and the Hardeman Basin of north Texas. Aside from
these basins, we also conduct activity in the Oklahoma’s Arkoma Basin and
Mountain Front play, the Oklahoma and Texas panhandles and the Hugoton
field in southwest Kansas.

As in 2002, one of the major thrusts of our 2003 capital program will be field
extensions and infill drilling in the Anadarko Basin's tight gas reservoirs,
principally found in the Pennsylvanian-age Red Fork formation. Our competitive
advantage in this area stems from a substantial acreage platform and the
insightful knowledge of our Tulsa-based staff that has spent the majority of
their career working this play.

Elsewhere in the Mid-Continent, nine out of 10 horizontal oit wells drilled by
Key or Cimarex during 2002 were completed as producers. We are planning on
drilling over 20 horizontal wells in this area during 2003. Our activity is driven
by an extensive database of regional 3-D seismic survey data, well-control
information and an experienced team of professionals.

About 60 percent, or $90 million, of budgeted 2003 capital expenditures are
earmarked for our Mid-Continent region.

Gulf Coast exploration is focused in southern Louisiana, coastal Texas and the
Mississippi Salt Basin. Although only 9 percent of our proved reserves are situated
in these areas, we expect to spend 30-35 percent of our exploration and
development budget here on projects managed from both our Tulsa and New
Orleans offices. Characterized by higher risk prospects that may have greater
potential, our Gulf Coast effort is an ideal complement to our lower risk
Mid-Continent program.

In the western U.S., we principally explore in the Sacramento Basin of California
and the Williston Basin of North Dakota and Montana. We also have long-lived
oil producing fields in the Power River and Big Horn Basins of Wyoming. Our
Permian Basin assets in west Texas and New Mexico are comprised of small
non-operated working interests in several mature oil fields and a nearly 100
percent working interest in the Dixieland gas field.




Financial Overview

NET INCOME
The following events affect the comparability of results of operations and - (Millions of Dollars)

financial condition for the periods presented.

Spin off and merger: Cn September 30, 2002, Cimarex was spun off from
Helmerich & Payne, (nc. (H&P) and became a stand-alone company. The spin-off
was accomplished by the distribution of 26.6 million shares of Cimarex common
stock to the shareholders of H&P. Simultaneously, Denver-based Key Production
merged with Cimarex in a tax-free reorganization that was accounted for as the
acquisition of Key by Cimarex. In the merger, Key's 14.1 million shares of common
stock were exchanged for a like number of Cimarex shares. Because the merger

was accounted for as a purchase business combination, our financial results

include the impact of Key only since September 30, 2002.

Change in fiscal year: Shortly after the spin-off, Cimarex changed its fiscal
year from September 30 to December 31. As a consequence, the financial
information presented in this report shows results of operations for the calendar
year ended December 31, 2002 and the twelve-month periods ended | PRODUCTION
September 30, 2001 and 2000. (Befe)

Summary Results
Net income grew 13 percent in 2002 to $39.8 million from $35.3 million in fiscal
2001. Financial results for 2001 include a $78.1 million reduction to the carrying

value of oil and gas properties.

Variation in financial results between the last three years is largely an outgrowth
of rising and falling natural gas prices. Our average realized gas price in 2002
of $2.91 per Mcf was 36 percent lower than the $4.55 per Mcf gas price we
received in fiscal 2001. That resulted in lower 2002 revenues from the sales of
production. On the other hand, our 2001 gas price rose 63 percent from $2.79
per Mcf in fiscal 2000, causing a large increase in sales. However, precipitously
low gas prices in September 2001 necessitated a non-cash write down to our oil

and gas assets that lowered 2001 net income. )
PROVED

RESERVES
Cash provided by 2002 operating activities totaled $104.5 million and more
than funded $66.5 million of capital expenditures. Excess funds were used to
reduce debt and cover spin-off and merger related expenses. Benefiting from
a solid drilling inventory, we are planning for $150 million of exploration and
development expenditures in 2003.

We are also well positioned to fund additional capital expenditures. Aside from

stronger cash flow resulting from potentially higher prices and production, our
year-end debt was only $32 million, or 6.7 percent of total capitalization.

10




- - The following table sets forth selected financial data for the year ended December 31, 2002

December 31

|
!
" As of and For the Years Ended ‘,
i 2002

(In Thousands of Dollars, except as noted)

O R AN GRS E—

—...and consolidated financial statements contained in the accompanying form 10-K.

~--_and each of the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, which information has been
= _derived from the Company’s audited financial statements. This information should be

read in connection with and is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information

September 30
2001

September 30
2000

8 149,382

—Oflanc gas sales
gt Income 99,879
- Net Income per shares
Basic V32
Hioted 1.3
Cash provided by
operating activities 104,435

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets
Total debt
Stockholders’ equity

$ 674,286
32,000
444,880
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Management Team

F. H. Merelli
Chairman, President and CEO

Joseph R. Albi
Vice President— Engineering

Stephen P. Bell
Vice President— Business Development
and Land

Roger Burau
Vice President—Drilling

Richard S. Dinkins
Director — Human Resources

David W. Honeyfield
Controller and Chief Accounting (folcer

Thomas E. Jorden
Vice President — Exploration

Paul Korus
Vice President and CFO

Gerald P. McLaughlin
Vice President — Marketing

Gerald A. Nagel
Vice President-—Production

James L. Painter ‘
Regional Exploration Manager —|
Gulf Coast |

Steven R. Shaw
Executive Vice President

Michael C. Stone
Regional Exploration Manager —
Mid-Continent

Rod A. Sutherland
Regional Exploration Manager —
Southeastern

Kamil Tazi
Regional Exploration Manager —
Western




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D C 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002
Commission file number 001-31446

CIMAREX ENERGY CQ.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 45-0466694
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)

707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 3300, Denver, Colorado 80202
(Address of principal executive offices including ZIP code)

(303) 295-3995
(Registrant’s telephone number)

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock (3.01 par value) New York Stock Exchange

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section
13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days.

YES X NO
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is
not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in
definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-K
or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

YES NO_ X

Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of Cimarex Energy Co. as of June
28, 2002 was approximately $0.

Number of shares of Cimarex Energy Co. common stock outstanding as of March 7, 2003 was
41,495,615.

Documents Incorporated by Reference: Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 2003
Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Form 10-K
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Glossary

Bbls — Barrels (of oil)

Bef - Billion cubic feet

Befe — Billion cubic feet equivalent

MBbls — Thousand barrels

Mef — Thousand cubic feet (of natural gas)

Mefe — Thousand cubic feet equivalent

MMBDbls — Million barrels

MMBtu — Million British Thermal Units

MMef — Million cubic feet

MMefe — Million cubic feet equivalent

Net Acres — Gross acreage multiplied by working interest percentage
Net Production — Gross production multiplied by net revenue interest
NGL ~ Natural gas liquids

One barrel of oil is the energy equivalent of six Mcf of natural gas.




Forward-Looking Statements

Throughout this Form 10-K, we make statements that may be deemed “forward-looking”
statements within the meaning of Section 274 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, that address
activities, events, outcomes and other matters that Cimarex plans, expects, intends, assumes, believes,
budgets, predicts, forecasts, projects, estimates or anticipates (and other similar expressions) will, should
or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based
on management’s current belief, based on currently available information, as to the outcome and timing
of future events. When considering forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the risk factors
and other cautionary statements in this Form 10-K. Forward-looking statements include statements with
respect to, among other things:

o amount, nature and timing of capital expenditures;
o drilling of wells;
o reserve estimates;
o timing and amount of future production of oil and natural gas;
operating costs and other expenses;
o cash flow and anticipated liquidity;
o estimates of proved reserves, exploitation potential or exploration prospect size; and
o marketing of oil and natural gas.

We caution you that these forward-looking statements are subject to all of the risks and
uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, incident to the exploration for and development,
production and sale of oil and gas. These risks include, but are not limited to, commodity price volatility,
inflation, lack of availability of goods and services, environmental risks, drilling and other operating
visks, regulatory changes, the uncertainty inherent in estimating proved oil and natural gas reserves and
in projecting future rates of production and timing of development expenditures and other risks described
herein.

Reserve engineering is a subjective process of estimating underground accumulations of oil and
natural gas that cannot be measured in an exact way. The accuracy of any reserve estimate depends on
the quality of available data and the interpretation of such data by our engineers. As a result, estimates
made by different engineers often vary from one another. In addition, the vesults of drilling, testing and
production activities may justify revisions of estimates that were made previously. If significant, such
revisions could change the schedule of any future production and development drilling. Accordingly,
reserve estimates are generally different from the quantities of oil and natural gas that are ultimately
recovered.

Should ore or more of the risks or uncertainties above or elsewhere in this Form 10-K occur, or
should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results and plans could differ materially from
those expressed in any forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements express or implied, included in this Form 10-K and attributable to
Cimarex are qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. This cautionary statement should
also be considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements that
Cimarex or persons acting on its behalf may issue. Cimarex does not undertake any obligation to update




any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of filing this Form 10-K
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, except as vequired by law.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Cimarex Energy Co. is an independent oil and gas exploration and production company.
Principal areas of operations are located in Oklahoma, Kansas, Texas and Louisiana. We also have
activity in Mississippi, California and other western states. Our gas is marketed through a wholly owned
subsidiary, Cimarex Energy Services, Inc. (CESI).

At December 31, 2002, proved reserves totaled 408.8 Befe consisting of 318.6 Bef of gas and
15,025 MBbis of oil. Of total proved reserves, 78 percent are gas and more than 99 percent are classified
as proved developed. We operate the wells that account for 62 percent of our total proved reserves.

The estimated present value of the future net cash flow before income taxes from year-end 2002
proved reserves, using a 10 percent discount rate, is $741.2 million. For purposes of this calculation,
Cimarex used an average gas price of $4.22 per Mcf and an average oil price of $28.56 per barrel. The
standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows was $533.9 million.

Cimarex was formed in February 2002 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
(H&P). In July 2002, H&P contributed its oil and gas exploration and production assets and the common
stock of CESI to Cimarex. On September 30, 2002, H&P distributed in the form of a dividend to H&P
stockholders approximately 26.6 million shares of Cimarex common stock. As a result, Cimarex was
spun-off and became a stand-alone company.

Also on September 30, 2002, Cimarex acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of
Key Production Company, Inc. The transaction was treated as a tax-free reorganization and accounted for
as a purchase business combination. In the merger, we issued 14.1 million shares of Cimarex common
stock on a one-for-one basis for 100 percent of the shares of Key common stock outstanding. Key
continues to conduct exploration and development activities as a wholly owned subsidiary of Cimarex.

Because the merger was accounted for as a purchase business combination, the financial and
operating results presented in this report on Form 10-K, unless expressly noted otherwise, include Key
only for the period subsequent to the merger on September 30, 2002.

On September 30, 2002, Cimarex changed its fiscal year from September 30 to December 31. As
a consequence, financial statements included in this report show results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2002, the three months ended December 31, 2001 and the two fiscal years ended
September 30, 2001 and 2000.

Cimarex operates in the oil and gas industry, and is comprised of an exploration, development
and production segment and natural gas marketing segment. For a discussion of financial information
about the two segments of Cimarex, see Note 11 of the Consolidated Financial Statements contained
herein.

Corporate headquarters are located at 707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 3300, Denver, Colorado
80202, telephone (303) 295-3995. Principal operations offices are at 15 East 5™ Street, Suite 1000, Tulsa,
Oklahoma 74103, telephone (918) 585-1100. Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and trades under the symbol “XEC.”




Business Strategy

Our strategy centers on achieving consistent profitable growth in proved reserves and production
by conducting a continually expanding moderate-risk drilling program and optimizing production rates
through recompletions and workovers. We also intend to supplement our growth with acquisitions and
mergers. To accomplish these objectives, we will implement the following strategy:

° Generate prospects and manage the drilling activities associated with our operated properties by
applying current technology and leveraging off our operational capabilities;

e Exploit our existing properties to increase production and enlarge our reserve base;

e Allocate 90 to 95 percent of our capital budget to exploration and development projects and 5 to
10 percent to production enhancement activities;

o Evaluate the economic and strategic attractiveness of acquisition and merger opportunities; and
° Maintain financial flexibility and an appropriate capital structure.
Exploration and Developmemnt

Exploration and development activities are focused in the Mid-Continent and onshore Gulf Coast
regions of the United States. The most significant concentration of effort is in the Mid-Continent region,
principally the Anadarko and Arkoma basins of Oklahoma, the Hugoton basin of Kansas, and the
Hardeman basin of north Texas. Our Gulf Coast projects are in south Louisiana, coastal Texas and
Mississippi. We also have operations in the Permian basin of west Texas, the Sacramento basin of
California, and other western states including North Dakota, Montana and Wyoming.

The focus of our exploration and development program is on moderate-risk prospects. In each of
our core areas we have assembled integrated teams comprised of landmen, geoscientists and petroleum
engineers who base their drilling decisions on economic models that contemplate an evaluation of
program and individual well risks. Through our exploration management system, we closely monitor
results and provide continuous feedback to allow each region to better plan for expected risks, reserves,
drilling costs and overhead.

Company-wide, we participated in drilling 110 gross wells during 2002, with an overall success
rate of 88 percent. In the fourth quarter, following the Key merger, we drilled 36 wells, of which 35 were
successful. The bulk of these new wells were in the Anadarko basin of Cklahoma and the Hardeman
basin of north Texas. On a net basis, 39.12 of 44.2 total wells drilled during 2002 were successful.
Overall, 2002 exploration and development expenditures, excluding leasehold costs, totaled $66.5 million
and resulted in 24.9 Befe of proved reserve additions.

We drilled 70 gross wells in our Mid-Continent region and completed 98 percent of them as
producers. In the Gulf Coast, we drilled 24 gross wells and 54 percent were productive; in West Texas 11
of our 12 gross wells were productive; and in our Western region, we drilled four gross wells and
completed 100 percent.



Acquisitions

As noted earlier, Cimarex acquired 100 percent of the common stock of Key on September 30,
2002. The acquisition of the proved and unproved oil and gas properties was valued at approximately
$297 million and resulted in the addition of 149.4 Befe of proved reserves, of which 98 percent were
classified as proved developed. The reserves acquired in the Key transaction are located primarily in the
Anadarko basin of Oklahoma, the Hardeman basin of north Texas, south Louisiana, south Texas and the
Mississippi Salt basin. In 2002, Cimarex also acquired a variety of smaller interests totaling 0.9 Bcefe for
approximately $1.0 million.

Production Activities

Full-year 2002 production volumes averaged 132 MMcfe per day versus 130 MMcfe per day in
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001. Gas production was 113.2 MMcf per day, compared to 116.1
MDMcf per day during fiscal 2001. Oil production was 3,209 barrels per day in 2002 versus 2,242 barrels
per day in fiscal 2001.

Although we benefited from a substantial increase in gas prices during the latter part of 2002, the
weighted-average price received for the full year of $2.91 per Mcf was 36 percent lower than the price for
fiscal 2001 of $4.55 per Mcf. Oil prices also declined from $27.88 per barrel in fiscal 2001 to $24.91 per
barrel in calendar 2002.

Cimarex employs management systems over our production activities that monitor actual results
against plan, evaluate the profitability of investment decisions, and measure controllable costs. The
management of our production activities is centralized from our office in Tulsa, Cklahoma.

Gas Marketing

Our marketing company, CESI, is responsible for selling substantially all of Cimarex’s gas
production. CESI also markets gas for joint interest partners and purchases third-party gas for resale.
CESI has an investment in compression, gathering services and processing facilities, from which it earns
a fee. The joint interest partner and third-party business resulted in CESI recording total gross sales of
$60.2 million and gross costs of $57.5 million. These purchases and sales are physical contracts that
require CESI to take title to the natural gas and deliver physical gas. The physical volumes under these
contracts are matched to one another. Neither Cimarex nor CESI has any marketing arrangements that
are considered derivative instruments within the scope of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 133.

CESI sells natural gas to markets in the Midwest and Mid-Continent areas under Index-based
terms or spot market contracts having a duration of 30 days or less. CESI also enters into interruptible
and non-interruptible agreements with pipeline companies for the transportation of its gas. As of
December 31, 2002, CESI had firm transportation commitments to transport 16,000 MMBtu per day
through September 30, 2003. These commitments expire in October 2009 and have annual volume
elections and price determinations.

CESI actively monitors the credit worthiness of its customers and may require parental
guarantees, letters of credit or prepayments when CESI deems such additional security is necessary.

Employees

Cimarex employed approximately 250 people in connection with our business at December 31,
2002. None of our employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements.
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Competition

The oil and gas industry is highly competitive. Competition is particularly intense in the
acquisition of prospective oil and gas properties and oil and gas reserves. The principal raw materials and
resources necessary for the exploration and development of natural gas and crude oil are leasehold
prospects under which oil and gas reserves may be discovered, drilling rigs and related equipment to drill
for and produce such reserves and knowledgeable personnel to conduct all phases of oil and gas
operations. Qur competitive position depends on our geological, geophysical and engineering expertise,
our financial resources, and our ability to select, acquire and develop proved reserves. We must compete
for such raw materials and resources with both major oil companies and independent operators having
larger financial, human and technological resources.

We also compete with major and independent oil and gas companies in the marketing and sale of
oil and gas to transporters, distributors and end users. The oil and gas industry competes with other
industries supplying energy and fuel to industrial, commercial and individual consumers. Many of these
competitors have financial resources, staffs and facilities substantially larger than those of Cimarex. The
effect of these competitive factors on Cimarex cannot be predicted.

Title to Oil and Gas Properties

We undertake title examination and perform curative work at the time properties are acquired or
are deemed to be productive. Cimarex believes that title to its oil and gas properties is generally good and
defensible in accordance with standards acceptable in the industry. Oil and gas properties in general are
subject to customary royalty interests contracted for in connection with the acquisitions of title, liens
incident to operating agreements, liens for current taxes and other burdens and minor encumbrances,
easements and restrictions.

Governmental Regulation in the Oil and Gas Industry

We are affected from time to time in varying degrees by political developments and federal and
state laws and regulations. In particular, oil and gas production operations and economics are affected by
price control, tax and other laws relating to the petroleum industry, by changes in such laws, and by
constantly changing administrative regulations. Most states in which Cimarex conducts or may conduct
oil and gas activities regulate the production and sale of oil and natural gas, including regulation of the
size of drilling and spacing units or proration units, the density of wells which may be drilled and the
unitization or pooling of oil and gas properties. In addition, state conservation laws establish maximum
rates of production from oil and natural gas wells, generally prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas
and impose certain requirements regarding the ratability of production. The effect of these regulations is
to limit the amounts of oil and natural gas that Cimarex can produce from its wells and to limit the
number of wells or locations at which Cimarex can drill. In addition, legislation affecting the natural oil
and gas industry is under constant review. Cimarex believes that compliance with existing federal, state
and local laws, rules and regulations will not have a material adverse effect upon its capital expenditures,
earnings or competitive position.

Regulatory Controls

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) requires interstate pipelines to provide open
access transportation of natural gas. Interstate pipelines have irnplemented this requirement by modifying
their tariffs and implementing new services and rates. These changes have provided Cimarex with
additional market access and more fairly applied transportation services and rates. FERC continues to
review and modify its open access and other regulations applicable to interstate pipelines.



Under the Natural Gas Policy Act (NGPA), natural gas gathering facilities are expressly exempt
from FERC jurisdiction; what constitutes “gathering” under the NGPA has evolved through FERC
decisions and judicial review of such decisions. Cimarex believes that its gathering systems meet the test
for non-jurisdictional “gathering” systems under the NGPA. Therefore, Cimarex believes that its
gathering facilities are not subject to federal regulations. Although exempt from federal regulatory
oversight, Cimarex’s natural gas gathering systems and services may receive regulatory scrutiny by state
agencies.

Additional proposals and proceedings that might affect the oil and gas industry are pending
before the U.S. Congress, FERC, state legislatures, state agencies and the courts. Cimarex cannot predict
when or whether any such proposals may become effective and what effect they will have on operations
of Cimarex. Cimarex does not anticipate that compliance with existing federal, state and local laws, rules
or regulations will have a material adverse effect upon the capital expenditures, earnings or competitive
position of Cimarex.

In addition to using its own gathering facilities, Cimarex may use third-party gathering facilities’
services or interstate transmission facilities (owned and operated by interstate pipelines) to ship its gas to
markets.

Federal and State Income Taxation

Cimarex and the petroleum industry in general are affected by certain federal income tax laws.
Cimarex has considered the effects of such federal and state income tax laws on its operations and does
not anticipate that there will be any material impact on the capital expenditures, earnings or competitive
position of Cimarex.

Envirenmental Laws

The activities of Cimarex are subject to existing federal and state laws and regulations governing
environmental quality and pollution control. Such laws and regulations may substantially increase the
costs of exploring, developing or producing oil and gas and may prevent or delay the commencement or
continuation of a given operation. In the opinion of Cimarex’s management, its operations substantially
comply with applicable environmental legislation and regulations. Cimarex believes that compliance
with existing federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations regulating the discharge of materials into
the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment will not have any material
effect upon the capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position of Cimarex.

Certain Risks

The following risks and uncertainties, together with other information set forth in this Form 10-K,
should be carefully considered by current and future investors in our securities. If any of the following
risks and uncertainties develop into actual events, this could materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations and could negatively impact the value of our common stock.

Oil and natural gas prices fluctuate widely, and iow prices could harm our business.

Our revenues, operating results and future rate of growth are substantially dependent upon the
prevailing prices of, and demand for, oil and natural gas. Declines in the prices of, or demand for, oil and
natural gas may adversely affect our financial condition, liquidity, ability to finance planned capital
expenditures and results of operations. Lower oil and natural gas prices may also reduce the amount of
oil and natural gas that we can produce economically. Historically, the markets for oil and natural gas
have been volatile and are likely to continue to be volatile in the future. Prices for oil and natural gas are
subject to wide fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for oil
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and natural gas, market uncertainty and a variety of additional factors that are beyond our control,
including:

o worldwide and domestic supplies of oil and natural gas;

o the ability of the members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries to agree to and
maintain oil prices and production controls;

° political instability or armed conflict in oil-producing regions;

o the price and level of foreign imports;

° the price and availability of alternative fuels;

o the availability of pipeline capacity;

o weather conditions;

o domestic and foreign governmental regulations and taxes; and

° the overall economic environment.

Exploration is a high-risk activity. The seismic data and other advanced technologies we use
are expensive and cannot eliminate exploration risk.

Our future success depends in part on the success of our drilling program. Poor results from our
exploration activities could affect our future results of operations and harm our financial condition.
Exploration activities involve numerous risks, including the risk that no commercially productive oil or
natural gas reservoirs will be discovered. In addition, we often are uncertain as to the future cost or
timing of drilling, completing and producing wells. Further, our drilling operations may be curtailed,
delayed or canceled as a result of a variety of factors, including:

° unexpected drilling conditions;

° title problems;

o pressure or irregularities in formations;

° equipment failures or accidents;

o adverse weather conditions;

° compliance with environmental and other governmental requirements; and

° cost of, or shortages or delays in the availability of, drilling rigs and equipment.

We rely to a significant extent on seismic data and other advanced technologies in conducting our
exploration activities. Even when used and properly interpreted, seismic data and visualization
techniques only assist geoscientists in identifying subsurface structures and hydrocarbon indicators. They
do not allow the interpreter to know conclusively if hydrocarbons are present or if hydrocarbons can be
produced economically. The use of seismic data and other technologies also requires greater pre-drilling
expenditures than traditional drilling strategies.

The faifure to replace our reserves would adversely afffect our operations and financial
condition.

In general, the volume of production from oil and natural gas properties declines as reserves are
depleted. If we fail to replace our reserves, our operations and financial condition could be adversely
atfected. Except to the extent we acquire properties containing proved reserves or conduct successful
exploitation and exploration activities, our proved reserves will decline as reserves are produced. Our
future oil and natural gas production is, therefore, highly dependent upon our success in finding or
acquiring additional reserves at attractive rates of return. In order to increase reserves and production, we
must continue development dritling and recompletion programs, pursue exploration and drilling projects
or undertake other replacement activities. Our current strategy includes increasing our reserve base by
continuing to exploit our existing properties, by acquiring producing properties and by pursuing
exploration oppertunities. Our planned exploitation and exploration projects and acquisition activities
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may not result in significant additional reserves, and our efforts to drill productive wells at favorable
finding costs may not be successful.

Reserve estimates are inherently uncertain. Any material inaccuracies in our reserve estimates
or underlying assumptions, such as the discount rate used, could cause the guantities and net present
value of our reserves to be misstated.

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves, including
many factors beyond our control that could cause the quantities and net present value of our reserves to be
misstated. Proved oil and gas reserve quantities are based on estimates prepared by Cimarex’s engineers
in accordance with guidelines established by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Ryder
Scott Company, L.P., independent petroleum engineers, reviewed reserve estimates for properties that
comprised 80 percent of the discounted future net cash flows before income taxes, using a 10 percent
discount rate, as of December 31, 2002. Petroleum engineering is not an exact science. Estimates of
economically recoverable oil and natural gas reserves and of future net cash flows necessarily depend
upon a number of variable factors and assumptions, any of which may cause these estimates to vary
considerably from actual results, such as:

° historical production from the area compared with production from other producing areas;

° assumed effects of regulation by governmental agencies and assumptions concerning future oil
and natural gas prices;

future operating costs;

severance and excise taxes;

capital expenditures; and

workover and remedial costs.

o]
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Estimates of reserves based on risk of recovery and estimates of expected future net cash flows
prepared by different engineers, or by the same engineers at different times, may vary substantially.
Actual production, revenues and expenditures with respect to our reserves will likely vary from estimates,
and the variance may be material. The net present values referred to in this report should not be construed
as the current market value of the estimated oil and natural gas reserves attributable to our properties. In
accordance with requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the estimated discounted net
cash flows from proved reserves are generally based on prices and costs as of the date of the estimate,
whereas actual future prices and costs may be materially different.

Competition in our industry is intense, and many of our competitors have greater financial,
technological and other resources than we do.

We operate in the highly competitive areas of oil and natural gas exploitation, exploration and
acquisition. The oil and natural gas industry is characterized by rapid and significant technological
advancements and introductions of new products and services using new technologies. We face intense
competition from independent technology-driven companies as well as from both major and other
independent oil and natural gas companies in each of the following areas:

° seeking to acquire desirable producing properties or new leases for future exploration;

° marketing our oil and natural gas production;

o Integrating new technologies; and

o seeking to acquire the equipment and expertise necessary to develop and operate our properties.

Many of our competitors have financial, technological and other resources substantially greater
than ours. These companies may be able to pay more for exploratory prospects and productive oil and
natural gas properties and may be able to define, evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of
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properties and prospects than our financial or human resources permit. Further, many of our competitors
may enjoy technological advantages and may be able to implement new technologies more rapidly than
we can. Our ability to explore for oil and natural gas prospects and to acquire additional properties in the
future will depend upon our ability to successfully conduct operations, implement advanced technologies,
evaluate and select suitable properties and consummate transactions in this highly competitive
environment.

We are subject to complex laws and regulations, including environmental regulations that can
adversely affect the cost, manner or feasibility of doing business.

Exploration for and exploitation, production and sale of oil and natural gas in the United States
are subject to extensive federal, state and local laws and regulations, including complex tax laws and
environmental laws and regulations. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in the
suspension or termination of our operations and subject us to administrative, civil and criminal penalties.
Further, these laws and regulations could change in ways that substantially increase our costs. We cannot
be certain that existing laws or regulations, as currently interpreted or reinterpreted in the future, or future
laws or regulations will not harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. We may be
required to make large expenditures to comply with environmental and other governmental regulations.
Matters subject to regulation include:

J discharge permits for drilling operations;
® drilling bonds;

° spacing of wells;

° unitization and pooling of properties;

o environmental protection;

o reports concerning operations; and

o taxation.

Under these laws and regulations, we could be liable for:

o personal injuries;

° property damage;

o oil spills;

e discharge of hazardous materials;

[}

well reclamation costs;
o remediation and clean-up costs; and
o other environmental damages.

We cannot control the activities on properties we do not operate.

Other companies operate approximately 35 percent of our net production. As a result, we have
limited ability to exercise influence over operations for these properties or their associated costs. Our
dependence on the operator and other working interest owners for these projects and our limited ability to
influence operations and associated costs could prevent the realization of our targeted returns on capital in
drilling or acquisition activities. The success and timing of drilling and exploitation activities on
properties operated by others therefore depend upon a number of factors that are outside of our control,
including:

o timing and amount of capital expenditures;

° the operator’s expertise and financial resources;

J approval of other participants in drilling wells; and
° selection of technology.
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Our business involves many operating risks that may result in substantial losses. Insurance
may be unavailable or inadequate to pretect us against these risks.

Our operations are subject to hazards and risks inherent in drilling for, producing and transporting
oil and natural gas, such as:

o fires;

o natural disasters;

E explosions;

® formations with abnormal pressures;

o casing collapses;

o embedded oilfield drilling and service tools;

= uncontrollable flows of underground natural gas, oil and formation water;,
e blowouts;

® surface cratering;

e pipeline ruptures or cement failures; and

o environmental hazards such as natural gas leaks, oil spills and discharges of toxic gases.

Any of these risks can cause substantial losses resulting from:

(5]

injury or loss of life;

damage to and destruction of property, natural resources and equipment;
pollution and other environmental damage;

regulatory investigations and penalties;

suspension of our operations; and

repair and remediation costs.

o © © 0 O

As protection against operating hazards, we maintain insurance coverage against some, but not
all, potential losses. However, losses could occur for uninsurable or uninsured risks, or in amounts in
excess of existing insurance coverage. The occurrence of an event that is not fully covered by insurance
could harm our financial condition and results of operations.

Our exploitation, acquisition and exploration operations require substantial capital, and we
may be unable to obtain needed financing on satisfactory terms.

We make and will continue to make substantial capital expenditures in exploitation, acquisition
and exploration projects. We intend to finance these capital expenditures with cash flow from operations
and our existing financing arrangements. Additional financing sources may be required in the future to
fund our developmental and exploratory drilling. We cannot be certain that financing will continue to be
available under existing or new financing arrangements, or that we will be able to obtain necessary
financing on acceptable terms, if at all. If additional capital resources are not available, we may be forced
to curtail our drilling, acquisition and other activities or be forced to sell some of our assets on an
untimely or unfavorable basis.

The acquisition of 0il and natural gas properties imposes substantial risks.

We constantly evaluate acquisition opportunities and frequently engage in bidding and
negotiating for acquisitions, many of which are substantial. We may not be successful in identifying or
acquiring any material property interests, which could prevent us from replacing our reserves and
adversely affect our operations and financial condition. If successful in this process, we may be required
to alter or increase substantially our capitalization to finance these acquisitions through the use of cash on
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hand, issuance of additional debt or equity securities, the sale of production payments, borrowing of
additional funds or otherwise. Our existing credit agreement includes covenants limiting our ability to
incur additional indebtedness. If we were to proceed with one or more acquisitions for stock, our
stockholders would suffer dilution of their interests. These additional capitalization requirements may
significantly affect our risk profile. The acquisition of properties that are substantially difterent in
operating or geologic characteristics or geographic locations from our existing properties could change
the nature of our operations and business. While we intend to concentrate on acquiring producing
properties with exploitation and exploration potential located in our current areas of operation, we may
decide to acquire properties located in other geographic regions.

Our operations require us to attract and retain experienced technical personnel.

Our exploratory drilling success depends, in part, on our ability to attract and retain experienced
professional personnel. Given our emphasis on exploration and development, personnel with a strong
background in geology, geophysics, engineering and operations are important to our success.

In order to preserve the tax-free treatment of the spin-off, Cimarex will be required to abide by
potentially significant restrictions which could limit its ability to undertake certain corporate actions
(such as the issuance of its common shares) that otherwise could be advantageous.

Cimarex and H&P entered into a tax sharing agreement which imposes ongoing restrictions on
H&P and Cimarex to ensure that applicable statutory requirements under the Internal Revenue Code and
applicable Treasury regulations continue to be met so that the spin-off remains tax-free to H&P and its
stockholders. As a result of these restrictions, the ability of Cimarex to engage in certain transactions,
such as the redemption of a material number of shares of its common stock, the issuance of equity
securities and the utilization of its stock as current in an acquisition, will be limited for a period of two
years following the spin-off. These restrictions may reduce the ability of Cimarex to engage in certain
business transactions that otherwise might be advantageous to Cimarex and its stockholders and could
have a negative impact on its business and stockholder value. [f the spin-off became taxable, H&P would
be expected to recognize a substantial amount of income, which would result in a material amount of
taxes. Depending on the circumstances, the tax sharing agreement allocates to Cimarex all, or a portion
of, any tax liability resulting from the spin-off being taxable. Any such taxes allocated to Cimarex would
be expected to be material to Cimarex.

If Cimarex undergoes a change of controf during the two-year period foliowing the spin-off, or
if the actions of Cimarex cause the spin-off to be taxable, Cimarex would be required to indemnify
HE&P for any resulting tax liabilities, which could negatively impact Cimarex’s financial condition and
Suture operations.

H&P or Cimarex may incur a material liability in respect to U.S. federal income taxes that may
become payable as a result of a change of control of Cimarex. In particular, if a change of control of
Cimarex occurs as a result of a plan or series of related transactions that includes the spin-off, the
distribution of the shares of Cimarex common stock may become taxable to H&P. Under section 355(e)
of the Internal Revenue Code, any issuance or acquisition of the stock of Cimarex within two years
following the spin-off will be presumed to be part of such a plan unless H&P or Cimarex were able to
rebut the presumption that the issuance or acquisition was part of the spin-off plan. A change of control
that results in tax under section 355(e) of the Internal Revenue Code generally will occur if, within the
four-year period ending two vears after the spin-off, a 50 percent or greater interest in Cimarex is
acquired. As a result of the merger, an approximate 34.75 percent interest in Cimarex will be treated as
already having been acquired.

If H&P or Cimarex (or their respective stockholders) takes or permits an action to be taken (or
omits to take an action) that causes the spin-off to become taxable, the relevant corporation generally will
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be required to bear the cost of the resulting tax liability to the extent that the liability results from the
actions or omissions of that corporation (or its stockholders) had caused the transaction to become
taxable, such as in the case of a retroactive change of law, Cimarex generally would be required to
indemnify H&P for 34.75 percent of the resulting tax liability and H&P generally would be required to
bear 65.25 percent of the liability. Payment of such amounts by Cimarex or both H&P and Cimarex
could cause the business, financial condition and operating results of Cimarex to suffer.

The Cimarex certificate of incorporation, by-laws and stockholders’ rights plan have
provisions that could discourage an unsolicited corporate takeover and could prevent stockholders
Jrom realizing a premium on their investment.

The certificate of incorporation and by-laws of Cimarex provide for a classified board of directors
with staggered terms, restrict the ability of stockholders to take action by written consent and prevent
stockholders from calling a meeting of the stockholders. In addition, the Delaware General Corporation
Law imposes restrictions on business combinations with interested parties. Cimarex also has adopted a
stockholders’ rights plan. The stockholders’ rights plan, the certificate of incorporation and the by-laws
may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of Cimarex, even if the
change in control might be beneficial to the Cimarex stockholders.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Properties

All of Cimarex’s operations and leasehold interests are located within the continental United
States. Most of the current exploration and development effort is concentrated in Oklahoma, Texas, and
Louisiana. Cimarex has varying levels of ownership interests in its oil and gas properties consisting of
working, royalty and overriding royalty interests.

Our engineers estimate proved natural o1l and gas reserve quantities in accordance with
guidelines established by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Ryder Scott Company, L.P.,
independent petroleum engineers, reviewed reserve estimates for properties that comprised 80 percent of
the discounted future net cash flows before income taxes, using a 10 percent discount rate, as of
December 31, 2002. All information in this Form 10-K relating to oil and gas reserves is net to
Cimarex’s interest unless stated otherwise. See Note 14, Supplemental Oil and Gas Disclosures, to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information. See Item 1, Business, for a description of the
Cimarex business.

Proved Qil and Gas Reserves as of December 31, 2002

Qil, Condensate

Gas and NGL Equivalent
Region MMe (MBbls) (MMefe)
Mid-Continent 237,609 6,121 274,332
West Texas 38,247 3,375 58,494
Gulf Coast 26,507 1,793 37,268
Western 16,264 3,736 38,685
Total 318.627 15,025 408.779

Proved Developed Reserves

318,452 14,765 407,044
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Significant Properties of Cimarex

Mid-Continent Properties

Our Mid-Continent reserves are comprised predominately of properties in the Anadarko and
Arkoma basins of Oklahoma, the Hugoton basin of southwestern Kansas and the Hardeman basin of north
Texas. The Mid-Continent regional office is headquartered in Tulsa, Oklahoma. The Mid-Continent
region is Cimarex’s largest source of reserves and production, and is the principal area of focus for our
drilling program.

Proved reserves in the Anadarko basin of western Oklahoma are concentrated in Roger Mills,
Washita, Custer and Beckam counties. Our reserves in this area are 97 percent natural gas and represent
23 percent of total proved reserves. We have an average working interest of 31 percent in 530 gross
wells. The majority of these wells are operated by other companies.

The Hugoton field in southwestern Kansas includes reserves from the Chase and Council Grove
formations. Reserves in this area are 85 percent natural gas and make up nearly 21 percent of our total
proved reserve base. We have an average working interest of approximately 50 percent in 512 gross
wells and we operate over 75 percent of these wells.

Our proved reserves in the Hardeman basin of north central Texas approximate 14 Befe or 4
percent of total proved. Our average working interest in the 57 wells in the Hardeman basin is 83 percent
and we operate the majority of these wells. The production from the wells in Hardeman County is
comprised primarily of oil.

Other significant reserves in the Mid-Continent region come from the Ashland field in the
Arkoma basin of eastern Oklahoma, the Scholem Alechem field in southern Oklahoma and our Hobart
Ranch properties in the Texas panhandle. The reserves from these three areas comprise 8 percent of our
total proved reserves. There are a total of 173 wells in which we have working interests varying from 30
to 94 percent.

West Texas

Proved reserves in West Texas include varying working interests in Dixieland, Gomez and Toro
fields and a 1 percent interest in the Denver Unit. Our most significant property is the Dixieland field
where we operate five producing wells with an average working interest of nearly 100 percent. At year-
end 2002, the area accounted for 14 percent of total proved reserves.

Gulf Coast

Gulf Coast exploration activities in southern Louisiana and coastal Texas are coordinated out of
our Tulsa office. Our New Orleans office manages our Mississippi Salt basin projects. Approximately 9
percent of our total proved reserves are located in the Gulf Coast area where we have an average 15
percent working interest in 444 gross wells,

Properties located in the Mississippi Salt basin comprise 2 percent of proved reserves, while
properties in Liberty County, Texas and the Laredo field of south Texas each account for 1 percent of
total reserves.

Western

The Western region office is headquartered in Denver. Gur Western region reserves are
concentrated in the Powder River and Wind River basins of Wyoming, the Williston basin in North
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Dakota and Montana and the Sacramento basin of California. Total proved reserves attributable to the
Western region were 38.7 Befe at year end, or 9 percent of total proved reserves.

Acreage

The undeveloped and developed acreage held by Cimarex as of December 31, 2002, is set forth

below:

Arkansas
California
Colorado
Kansas
Louisiana
Michigan
Mississippi
Montana
Nebraska
New Mexico
North Dakota
Oklahoma
Texas

Utah
Wyoming

Total Company

Developed Acreage

Undeveloped Acreage

Gross Acres Net Acres
23,013 15,739
3,023 41
16,059 15,672
28,249 12,683
4,024 4,024
14,055 5,729
12,491 1,658
12,821 969
522 53
20,426 386
33,669 28,433
87,566 50,577
1,174 1,100
38,342 5,258
295,434 142,322
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Gross Acres Net Acres
4,766 1,638
7,892 6,226

969 385
128,069 90,952
18,134 7,113
0,649 2,341
9,591 5,661
480 168
2,483 192
7,489 1,262
179,705 79,622
201,778 67,041
440 2
7,591 921
579,036 263,524




Gross Wells Drilled

Cimarex participated in the following number of gross wells drilled during calendar 2002, the
three months ended December 31, 2001 and fiscal years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000:

Exploratery Developmental
Productive Dry Total Productive Dry Total
Year Ended
December 31, 2002:
Mid-Continent 3 1 4 66 — 66
West Texas — — — 11 1 12
Gulf Coast 10 11 21 3 — 3
Western — — — 4 —— 4
Total 13 12 25 84 1 85
Three Months Ended
December 31, 2001 :
Mid-Continent — — — 6 — 6
Gulf Coast 3 5 8 — — —
Total 3 5 8 6 — 6
Year Ended
September 30, 2001
Mid-Continent 1 2 3 66 6 72
Gulf Coast 23 19 42 4 2 6
Total 24 21 45 70 8 78
Year Ended
September 30, 2000:
Mid-Continent 4 — 4 45 2 47
Gulf Coast 15 il 26 1 3 4
Total 19 11 30 46 5 51

Cimarex was in the process of drilling 10 gross (4.5 net) wells at December 31, 2002.
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Net Wells Drilled

The number of net wells Cimarex drilled during calendar year 2002, the three months ended
December 31, 2001 and the two fiscal years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 are shown below:

Exploratery Developmental
Productive Dry Total Productive Dry Total
Year ended December 31, 2002 7.05 4.15 11.20 32.07 0.93 33.00
Three months ended December 31, 2001 0.92 1.63 2.55 3.60 — 3.66
Year ended September 30, 2001 9.04 9.96 19.00 43.46 7.00 50.46
Year ended September 30, 2000 9.74 5.70 15.44 23.86 3.40 27.26

Reserve Information

Cimarex’s estimated proved oil and gas reserves, as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and as of
September 30, 2001 and 2000 are included in Note 14, Supplemental Oil and Gas Disclosures to
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in this Form 10-K. Supplemental Oil and Gas Disclosures
also include Cimarex’s net revenues from production (including royalty and working interest production)
of oil and gas for the same periods.

Total Proved Reserves Proved Developed Reserves
Gas Qil Total Gas Oil Total
(MMecf) (MBbls) (MMcfe) (MMecf) (MBbls) (MMecfe)
As of:
December 31, 2002 318.627 15,025 408,779 318,452 14,765 407,044
December 31, 2001 212,326 5,304 244,150 211,874 4.607 239.513
September 30, 2001 216,337 5,932 251,927 213,931 5.213 245,207
September 30, 2000 262.498 6.305 300,329 229,992 6.068 266,403

Future reserve values are based on year-end prices except in those instances where the sale of gas is
covered by contract terms providing for determinable escalations. Operating costs, production and ad
valorem taxes, and future development costs are based on current costs with no escalations.

Discounted
Future Net Standardized
Cash Flows Measure of
Before Income Discounted Future Average
Tax Net Cash Flows Year-end Price Used
(Discounted at (Discounted at 10 in Calculation of
10 Percent) Percent) Future Net Cash Flows
(In theusands. except price data) Gas Qil
As of:
December 31, 2002 § 741209 § 533,859 S 422 $ 28.56
December 31, 2001 241,150 182,565 2.23 18.10
September 30, 2001 191,240 144,039 1.90 20.25

September 30, 2000 680,213 488,071 5.13 30.83
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Productive Wells

Cimarex has working interests in the following productive oil and gas wells as of December 31,

2002:
Gas Qil
Gross Net Gross Net

Mid-Continent 1,590 579.4 619 198.8
West Texas 42 25.2 3,506 65.7
Gulf Coast 347 69.7 97 19.9
Western 201 35.6 1,438 86.6

2,180 709.9 5,660 371.0

Production and Pricing Information

The following table describes for each of the last three fiscal years, our oil and gas production and
pricing data:

Average
Production
Gas Oil Average Sales Price Cost
(MMcef) (MBbls) Per Mef Per Bbl Per Mcfe
Year ended December 31, 2002 41,300 1,171 § 291 $ 2491 $0.40
Three months ended December
31, 2001 10,174 206 $ 205 $ 19.97 $0.37
Year ended September 30, 2001 42,387 818 $ 455 $ 27.88 $0.28
Year ended September 30, 2000 46,923 880 $ 279 $ 2795 $0.21
ITEM 3, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

H.B. King, et al v. Helmerich & Pavne, In¢., filed in the District Court of Tulsa County,
Oklzahoma on December 22, 1998 (Case No. CS-98-66012).

Cimarex is a defendant to certain claims relating to drainage of gas from two properties that we
operate. The royalty owner plaintiffs have filed suit on behalf of themselves and a class of similarly
situated royalty owners in two 640-acre-spacing units. The plaintiffs allege that the two units have
suffered approximately 12 Bef of gross gas drainage. Although the plaintiffs have not specified in their
pleadings the amount of damages alleged, the plaintiffs have orally stated that the royalty owner class has
sustained actual damages of approximately $6.2 million exclusive of interest and costs. Cimarex estimates
that the share of such alleged damages attributable to its working interest ownership would total
approximately $1.0 million exclusive of interests and costs. Plaintiffs further allege that, as a former
operator, Cimarex is liable for all damages attributable to the drainage. We believe that our liability, if
any, should not exceed our working interest share of any actual damages attributable to the alleged
drainage. In the event that Cimarex is held liable for the full amount of any actual damages, Cimarex will
seek contribution, indemnification and/or other appropriate relief from all other working interest owners
for their portion of the alleged drainage that is attributable to the interest of those other owners. This case
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is in the early stages of discovery and Cimarex cannot estimate the outcome, and accordingly, no accrual
has been recorded in connection with this action.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted for a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2002.
ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF CIMAREX

The executive officers of Cimarex as of March 7, 2003 were:

Name Age Office

F.H. Merelli 66 Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President
Steven R. Shaw 52 Executive Vice President

Paul Korus 46 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Thomas E. Jorden 45 Vice President, Exploration

Stephen P. Bell 48 Senior Vice President, Business Development and Land
Joseph R. Albi 44 Vice President, Engineering

David W. Honeyfield 36 Controller, Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Secretary

F.H. MERELLJ was elected chairman of the board, chief executive officer, president and a
director of Cimarex on September 30, 2002. Prior to Cimarex and since September 1992, Mr. Merelli
was the chairman and chief executive officer of Key and from March 2002 until September 30, 2002, and
prior to September 1999, he also held the office of president. From July 1991 to September 1992, Mr.
Merelli was engaged as a private consultant in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Merelli was president and
chief operating officer of Apache Corporation and president, chief operating officer and a director of Key
from June 1988 to July 1991, at which time he resigned from those positions in both companies. He was
president of Terra Resources, Inc. from 1979 to 1988. Mr. Merelli has been a director of Apache
Corporation since July 1997.

STEVEN R. SHAW was elected executive vice president of Cimarex on September 30, 2002.
Prior to his election and since 1985, Mr. Shaw was with H&P. In 1996, Mr. Shaw was appointed vice
president, exploration and production of H&P. From 1985 to 1996, Mr. Shaw served as its vice president,
production.

PAUL KORUS was elected vice president, chief financial officer and treasurer of Cimarex on
September 30, 2002. Mr. Korus joined Key in September 1999, as its vice president and chief financial
officer. He was an equity research analyst with Petrie Parkman & Co., an investment banking firm, from
June 1995 to September 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Korus was director of investor relations for Apache
Corporation.

THOMAS E. JORDEN was elected vice president, exploration of Cimarex on September 30,
2002. Prior to Cimarex, Mr. Jorden had been with Key since November 1993. In September 1999, he
was appointed vice president, exploration. He served as chief geophysicist from November 1993 until
September 1999. Prior to joining Key, Mr. Jorden was with Union Pacific Resources in Fort Worth,
Texas.

STEPHEN P. BELL was elected senior vice president business development and land on
September 30, 2002. Prior to Cimarex, Mr. Bell had been with Key since February 1994. In September
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1999, he was appointed senior vice president-business developrnent and land. From February 1994 to
September 1999, he served as vice president-land. From March 1991 to February 1994, he was president
of Concord Reserve, Inc., a privately held independent oil and gas company. He was employed by
Pacific Enterprises Oil Company (formerly Terra Resources, Inc.) as mid-continent regional manager
from February 1990 to February 1991 and as land manager from August 1985 to January 1990.

JOSEPH R. ALBTI was elected vice president-engineering of Cimarex on September 30, 2002.
Prior to Cimarex, Mr. Albi had been with Key since June 1994. In September 1999, he was appointed
vice president-engineering. He served as manager of engineering from June 1994 to September 1999. He
was executive vice president of Black Dome Energy Corporation from 1991 to 1994. Prior to that, Mr.
Albi held various engineering positions with Apache Corporation and Nicor Oil and Gas Corporation.

DAVID W. HONEYFIELD was elected controller and chief accounting officer and corporate
secretary of Cimarex on September 30, 2002. Prior to Cimarex, Mr. Honeyfield was hired by Key as the
controller and chief accounting officer on April 2, 2002. Prior to joining Key, Mr. Honeyfield was a
senior audit manager with Arthur Andersen LLP in Denver. Mr. Honeyfield had been with Arthur
Andersen LLP since January 1991.

There are no family relationships by blood, marriage, or adoption among any of the above
executive officers of Cimarex. All executive officers are elected annually by the board of directors to
serve for one year or until his or her respective successor is elected and qualified. There is no
arrangement or understanding between any of the above executive officers and any other person pursuant
to which he was selected as an executive officer.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Cimarex’s common stock, par value $0.01 per share, trades on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol XEC. No dividends were paid in 2002, Cimarex common stock was listed on the New
York Stock Exchange on September 26, 2002, for sale on a when-issued basis, and commenced normal
trading on September 30, 2002, upon completion of the spin-off from H&P. The high and low sales
prices of the Cimarex common stock for the fourth quarter of 2002 were:

Market Price 2002
High Low
Fourth Quarter $18.00 $13.49

The closing price of Cimarex’s common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on March 7,
2003, was $20.25. At December 31, 2002, the Company’s 41,410,308 shares of outstanding common
stock were held by approximately 4,900 stockholders of record.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected financial data of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2002, each of the years in the four-year period ended September 30, 2001, and the three
months ended December 31, 2001. On September 30, 2002, Cimarex changed its fiscal year from
September 30 to December 31. Also, on September 30, 2002, Cimarex acquired 100 percent of the
common stock of Key in a tax-free exchange of stock accounted for as a purchase business combination.
Results of Key are included in the operating results only for the time subsequent to the acquisition on

September 30, 2002. This information should be read in connection with and is qualified in its entirety by

the more detailed information and Consolidated Financial Statements provided in Item 8 of this

Form 10-K:

Operating results:
Revenues
Net income
Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends declared
per share
Balance sheet data:
Total assets
Total debt
Stockholders™ equity
Other financial data:
Oil and gas sales
Oil and gas capital
expenditures
Proved Reserves:
Gas (MMcf)
0il (MBbls)
Total equivalent
(MMcfe)

As of and For the Years Ended

Three Months

Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 2001
$ 209,570 316,778 S 237,021 146,902 152,280 39,596
39,819 35,253 57,386 23,559 30,260 4,479
1.32 1.33 2.16 0.89 1.14 0.17
1.31 1.33 2.16 0.89 1.14 0.17
674,286 246,212 286,090 234,929 215,407 251,966
32,000 — — — — —
444 880 166,795 192,972 172,664 161,768 175,082
149,382 215,777 155,657 91,012 97,979 24,971
368,503 104,975 73,821 55,933 55,569 14,425
318,627 216,337 262,498 239,620 251,626 212,326
15,025 5,932 6,305 4,834 4,761 5,304
408,779 251,927 300,329 268,623 280,194 244,150
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

On September 30, 2002, we changed our fiscal year-end from September 30 to December 31. As
a result, we are comparing the year ended December 31, 2002 to the fiscal year ended September 30,
2001. We are also comparing the year ended September 30, 2001 to the fiscal year ended September 30,
2000. Each annual period discussed includes a full twelve months of operations. The three months ended
December 31, 2001 are compared to the three months ended December 31, 2000.

Faor the Year Ended
December 31, September 30,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenues $ 209,570 § 316,778 § 237,021
Net income 39,819 35,253 57,386
Per share — basic 1.32 1.33 2.16
Per share — diluted 1.31 1.33 2.16

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001 and the Fiscal
Year Ended September 30, 2001 Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

On September 30, 2002, Cimarex acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of Key
in a tax-free exchange of stock. In the acquisition, we issued approximately 14.1 million shares of our
common stock for all the outstanding shares of Key common stock as of that date, on a one-for-one basis.
The results of operations for Cimarex include Key beginning with the fourth quarter of 2002. The
acquisition of Key increased our proved reserves by 94.7 Bef of gas and 9.1 MMBDlIs of oil, or an
aggregate of 149.4 Bcfe. The purchase price allocated to these proved oil and gas properties was
approximately $285.0 million.

We generated net income of $39.8 million, or $1.31 per diluted share for the year ended
December 31, 2002, compared with net income of $35.3 million, or $1.33 per diluted share for the year
ended September 30, 2001. In fiscal 2000, net income was $57.4 million, or $2.16 per diluted share.

Wide variations in natural gas prices between and during the years presented are the primary
factors causing changes in net income from period to period. In 2002, net income grew by 13 percent
compared to fiscal 2001 despite a 36 percent drop in gas prices because fiscal 2001 results were
negatively affected by a $78.1 million reduction to the carrying value of oil and gas properties stemming
from a sharp drop in gas prices on September 30, 2001 compared to average prices for that year., The
carrying cost reduction contributed to a 39 percent decrease in 2001 net income compared with fiscal
2000 earnings, even though gas prices were 63 percent higher.
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Information about oil and gas sales, production volumes and prices are presented in the following

table:
For the Years Ended
December 31, September 30,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands or as indicated)
Gas sales $ 120,210 § 192,962 § 131,056
Oil sales 29,172 22,815 24,601
Total oil and gas sales 3 149,382 $ 215,777 $ 155,657
Total gas volume — Mcf 41,299,762 42,386,796 46,922,752
Gas volume — MMcf per day 113.2 116.1 128.2
Gas price — per Mcf $ 291§ 455 8§ 2.79
Total oil volume — barrels 1,171,104 818,356 880,304
Oil volume - barrels per day 3,209 2,242 2,405
Oil price — per barrel $ 2491  § 2788 § 27.95
Cost per Mcfe:
Depreciation, depletion and
amortization of oil and gas properties $ 1.02 % 1.05  § 0.80
Reduction to carrying value of
oil and gas properties — 1.65 —
Production 0.40 0.28 0.21
Taxes other than income 0.27 0.40 0.23
General and administrative 0.18 0.21 0.15

In 2002, oil and gas sales declined $66.4 million, or 31 percent to $149.4 million from $215.8
million in fiscal 2001. Compared to the prior year, gas sales decreased $72.8 million and oil sales
increased $6.4 million. Gas prices decreased 36 percent to $2.91 per Mcf while oil realizations fell 11
percent to $24.91 per Bbl. Aggregate production volumes increased 2 percent to 132.4 MMcfe per day,
from 129.6 MMcfe per day produced during fiscal 2001 as a result of the inclusion of 6,049 MMcfe of
production per day from Key in the fourth quarter. Lower gas prices were the most significant factor in
the decline in gas sales, while an increase in production volumes caused the bulk of the increase in oil
sales.

Gas sales for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased by $72.8 million, or 38 percent, to
$120.2 million from $193.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2001. The average realized gas
price for 2002 was $2.91 per Mcf, compared to $4.55 per Mcf during the year ended September 30, 2001.
Lower gas prices accounted for $67.8 million of the decrease in sales.

Daily gas production in 2002 declined 2 percent to 113.2 MMcf versus 116.1 MMcf in fiscal
2001. Lower gas volumes resulted from natural production declines in existing wells, partially offset by
output from new wells that were completed since September 30, 2001 and gas wells acquired through the
Key acquisition. Reduced production volumes resulted in a $5.0 million decrease in sales.

Oil sales in 2002 of $29.2 million were 28 percent higher than $22.8 million in the year ended
September 30, 2001. Forty-three percent higher oil production generated $9.8 million of incremental
sales partially offset by a $3.4 million decrease in revenues from lower oil prices. We produced an
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average of 3,209 barrels per day in the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 2,242 barrels per day
in fiscal year 2001. Oil prices averaged $24.91 per barrel in 2002, versus $27.88 per barrel in 2001. The
Key acquisition contributed $10.1 million in oil sales and 402 MBbls since September 30, 2002.

Oil and gas sales for the year ended September 30, 2001 were $215.8 million, compared to
$155.7 million for the same period in 2000, an increase of $60.1 million or 39 percent. Gas revenues
increased to $193.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2001 from $131.1 million for the same
period in 2000 as gas prices increased and volumes declined. The $61.9 million increase in gas revenues
was caused primarily by higher gas prices. Gas prices averaged $4.55 per Mcf and $2.79 per Mcf for the
years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Gas volumes averaged 116.1 MMcf per day and
128.2 MMcf per day for the comparable two periods.

Oil revenues decreased to $22.8 million from $24.6 million for the years ended September 30,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Crude oil prices were essentially flat, averaging $27.88 and $27.95 per
barrel for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease in oil revenues is
primarily due to lower volumes. Crude oil volumes averaged 2,242 barrels per day in fiscal 2001 and
2,405 barrels per day in fiscal 2000.

As the prices for oil and gas change, the components of our oil and gas sales fluctuate. In 2002,
our revenues came from the following product mix: 80 percent gas and 20 percent oil. This compares to
89 percent gas and 11 percent oil in fiscal 2001. On a volumetric basis, we produced 85 percent gas and
15 percent oil in 2002 and 90 percent gas and 10 percent oil in fiscal year 2001.

Net gas marketing revenues fell to $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared
to $6.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2001. Gross gas marketing revenues and purchases for
2002 were $60.2 million and $57.5 million, respectively. This compares to $100.2 million and $93.8
million, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2001. The decreases are due to lower average gas
prices in 2002 compared to 2001.

Gas marketing revenues for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 were $100.2 million
and $78.9 million, respectively. Gas marketing purchases were $93.8 million and $74.7 million for fiscal
2001 and 2000, respectively. The change in both sales and purchases is due to significantly higher
average gas prices in 2001.

The prices we receive reflect the impact of market forces, which are influenced by many factors,
including: geopolitical events, economic growth, Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries policies,
weather, electricity demand and others. We have not entered into any derivative contracts or hedges with
respect to our production,

Costs and Expenses

Depreciation, depletion and amortization (DD&A) expense for oil and gas producing assets
remained essentially unchanged for the years ended December 31, 2002 and September 30, 2001. On a
unit of production basis, DD&A was $1.02 per Mcfe in 2002, compared to $1.05 per Mcfe in 2001.
Calendar 2002 was on trend to be much lower than fiscal 2001 following the $78.1 million reduction to
carrying value of oil and gas properties recorded at September 30, 2001. However, the purchase of
$285.0 million of oil and gas properties in the Key acquisition increased fourth quarter DD&A, thereby
making the unit rate in the two fiscal periods relatively comparable. Fixed asset depreciation of
$1.0 million was relatively unchanged between years.

DD&A expense for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 was $49.7 million and
$41.7 million, respectively, or $1.05 per Mcfe and $0.80 per Mcfe, respectively. The $8.0 million
increase and higher rate was due to a decline in proved reserves and an increase in the amount of costs
subject to amortization.
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The risk that we will be required to write-down the carrying value of our oil and gas properties
increases when oil and gas prices are depressed, or if we have substantial downward revisions to our
proved reserves. The risk also becomes greater if our finding costs increase on a per Mcfe basis relative
to our total cost per Mcfe basis in the full cost pool. Based on oil and gas prices in effect on
December 31, 2002, we were not required to record a full cost ceiling write-down in 2002. However, at
the end of fiscal 2001, we recognized a $78.1 million reduction in the carrying value of our oil and gas
properties. Because of the volatility of o1l and gas prices, we may be required to record a ceiling test
write-down in future periods.

Between the years ended December 31, 2002 and September 30, 2001, production costs increased
48 percent. On a unit of production basis, annual expenses increased to $0.40 per Mcfe in 2002 from
$0.28 per Mcfe in 2001. The decrease in natural gas production, combined with higher costs from oil
wells associated with the Key acquisition, resulted in higher overall and per unit production expenses.

Production costs for the year ended September 30, 2001 were $13.1 million, or $0.28 per Mcfe,
compared to $10.7 million, or $0.21 per Mcfe, in the same period of 2000. The $2.4 million increase was
primarily due to increased well workovers and expenses related to producing properties added during
2001 and natural declines in production from substantially the same number of wells.

Taxes other than income for 2002 decreased 31 percent to $13.2 million from $19.0 million for
the year ended September 30, 2001. Taxes for 2002 equate to 8.8 percent of oil and gas sales, or $0.27
per Mcfe. This compares to 8.8 percent of oil and gas sales, or $0.40 per Mcfe, in fiscal year 2001.
Although the percentage was unchanged from year-to-year, we did have certain items that had an impact
on the total amount expended. The decline in production-related taxes was a result of receiving a
severance tax refund of $0.8 million in 2002 and new wells in Louisiana receiving an exempt status for
the year. 2001 was impacted by ad valorem taxes on properties being valued at January 1, 2001 when gas
prices were higher than at January 1, 2002. The decrease on a per unit basis is also the result of the 31
percent decrease in oil and gas sales stemming from lower product prices.

Taxes other than income for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 were $19.0 million
and $12.1 million respectively, or 8.8 percent and 7.8 percent respectively, of oil and gas sales. Increases
in both production and property taxes in 2001 were the result of the higher gas prices received in 2001.

General and administrative (G&A) expense decreased 15 percent between the years ended
December 31, 2002 and September 30, 2001. On a unit basis, 2002 G&A decreased to $0.18 per Mcfe
compared to $0.21 per Mcfe for 2001. The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in the allocation of
salary and benefits from Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (H&P) in 2001 and slightly higher average daily
production.

G&A expense for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 was $10.1 million and
$7.6 million, respectively. The $2.5 million increase is primarily due to legal and other professional
services related to the efforts to establish Cimarex as a separate public entity and increases in labor costs.

Interest expense before capitalization was $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 and
a credit of $1.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2001. Interest expense for 2001 is negative as a
result of the settlement of an ad valorem tax contingency settled for less than originally escrowed,
resulting in a portion of the interest component of the settlement being reversed. We capitalized $0.2
million in interest expense related to borrowings associated with undeveloped leasehold costs in 2002. At
December 31, 2002, our effective interest rate was 5.5 percent, including the commitment fee, on debt of
$32.0 million.

Income tax expense totaled $21.6 million for 2002 versus $19.6 million for 2001. Tax expense
was calculated using a combined federal and state effective income tax rate of 38 percent for all periods,
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adjusted for items that are deductible only for income tax purpeses. The adjustments resulted in a 35
percent effective rate in 2002 and 36 percent in both fiscal 2001 and 2000.

Three Months Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to December 31, 2000

For the Three Months
Ended December 31,
2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)
Revenues $ 39,596 ) 86,407
Net income 4,479 27,582
Per share - basic 0.17 1.04
Per share — diluted 0.17 1.04

We generated net income of $4.5 million, or $0.17 per diluted share, for the quarter ended
December 31, 2001, compared with net income of $27.6 million, or $1.04 per diluted share, for the
quarter ended December 31, 2000. The decline in net income for the quarter ended December 31, 2001 as
compared to the same period in 2000 is primarily attributable to a decrease in revenues to $39.6 million
for the quarter ended December 31, 2001 versus $86.4 million for the same period of 2000. Commodity
prices, particularly for natural gas, were substantially higher in the quarter ended December 31, 2000.

Results of Operations

Information about oil and gas sales, production volumes and prices are presented in the following

table:
For the Three Months Ended
December 31,
2001 2000
Gas sales $ 20,864 § 50,535
Oil sales 4,107 7,147
Total oil and gas sales $ 24971 § 57,682
Total gas volume — Mcf 10,173,768 10,710,129
Gas volume — MMcf per day 110.6 116.4
Gas price — per Mcf S 205§ 4.72
Total o1l volume — barrels 205,696 230,221
Oil volume — barrels per day 2,236 2,502
Oil price — per barrel $ 1997 §% 31.04
Costs per Mcfe:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of oil and gas properties $ 0.79 3 0.78
Production 0.37 0.22
Taxes other than income 0.22 0.35
General and administrative 0.32 0.20

Revenue from oil and gas sales declined $32.7 million or 57 percent, between the fourth quarter
of 2000 and 2001 to $25.0 million. Compared to a year earlier, gas sales decreased $29.7 million and oil
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sales decreased $3.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2001. The declines were due primarily to lower oil
and gas prices during the quarter ended December 31, 2001. Combined oil and gas production volumes
during the latest three month period were 124.0 MMcfe per day, a decrease from 131.4 MMcfe per day
produced during the quarter ended December 31, 2000.

Driven by lower prices in the quarter ended December 31, 2001, gas sales decreased
$29.7 million, or 59 percent, to $20.9 million, as compared to $50.5 million in the same quarter of 2000.
Lower gas prices caused $27.2 million of the decrease and slightly lower production volume resulted in
the remaining $2.5 million decrease. The average realized gas price for the quarter ended December 31,
2001 was $2.05 per Mcf, compared to $4.72 per Mcf during the same three months of 2000. Daily gas
production declined 5 percent to 110.6 MMcf per day in the quarter ended December 31, 2001 versus
116.4 MMcf per day in the comparable 2000 period. The slight fall in daily gas production is due to
natural declines in wells in the Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast regions, partially offset by production from
wells that were completed during 2001.

Oil sales decreased $3.0 million, or 43 percent, to $4.1 million in the quarter ended December 31,
2001 as compared to the same period in 2000. Approximately $2.3 million of the decrease is related to
lower oil prices. We produced an average of 2,236 barrels per day in the fourth quarter of 2001 compared
to 2,502 barrels per day in the fourth quarter of 2000. We realized an average price of $19.97 per barrel in
the quarter ended December 31, 2001, compared to $31.04 per barrel in the same quarter of 2000.

In the quarter ended December 31, 2001, our oil and gas revenues came from the following
product mix: 84 percent gas and 16 percent oil. This compares to the following mix for the same quarter
of 2000: 88 percent gas and 12 percent oil. On a volumetric basis, we produced 89 percent gas and 11
percent oil in each quarter ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Net gas marketing income decreased from $4.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2000 to
$1.7 million in 2001. Spot market prices were very volatile in November and December 2000 as gas
prices were rapidly increasing to relatively high levels. In the three months ended December 31, 2001, gas
prices were substantially lower and much more stable. The $2.9 million variance in net revenues reflects
the less volatile market conditions that existed during the last three months of 2001 when spot market
sales of third-party gas were accomplished at prices only slightly higher than the cost of gas purchases.
Gross gas marketing revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 were $14.6
million and $28.3 million, respectively. Gas marketing purchases for the three months ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000 were $12.9 million and $23.7 million, respectively.

Costs and Expenses

DD&A expense decreased 5 percent between the quarter ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. On
a unit of production basis, DD&A was $0.79 per Mcfe in the quarter ended December 31, 2001 and $0.78
per Mcte for the same period in 2000. Fixed asset depreciation of $0.3 million was relatively unchanged
for these comparable periods.

Cur production expenses increased 59 percent between the quarters ended December 31, 2001
and the same period of 2000. The December 31, 2001 quarter production expense increased to $0.37 per
Mcfe from $0.22 per Mcfe in 2000. The 2001 production expense increase was a result of approximately
$0.3 million of production costs associated with new wells in the Gulf Coast and in Kansas. Also
recorded in 2001 was additional compression costs of approximately $0.3 million in our Mid-Continent
region. Lastly, we incurred approximately $0.6 million of production costs associated with outside
operated properties as a result of general cost increases. The cost per Mcfe increase was attributable
primarily to the factors mentioned above together with the decrease in production.

Taxes other than income for the quarter ended December 31, 2001 decreased 39 percent to
$2.6 million from $4.2 million in the prior year’s comparable quarter. The tax of 2001 equates to 10.3
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percent of oil and gas sales, or $0.22 per Mcfe. This compares to 7.3 percent of oil and gas sales, or $0.35
per Mcfe in 2000. The decline in production related taxes is primarily the result of lower oil and gas
prices.

G&A increased 53 percent between the quarter ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. On a per
Mcfe basis, in the fourth quarter of 2001, G&A increased to $0.32 per Mcfe compared to $0.20 per Mcfe
for the comparable period in 2000. The increase is primarily due to a $0.9 million impairment of
receivables from Enron Corporation and costs associated with legal proceedings. Cimarex has no
additional exposure relating to Enron as all sales to Enron were terminated at November 30, 2001.

Income tax expense totaled $2.8 million for the three months ended December 31, 2001
compared to $16.5 million for the comparable period in 2000 a year earlier. The substantial decrease was
a result of lower revenue resulting from lower oil and gas prices. The combined Federal and state
effective income tax rate during the quarter ended December 31, 2001 was 38 percent versus 37 percent
during the final three months of 2000.

Cash Flow and Liquidity

We primarily need cash to fund our exploration, development, and acquisition activities and to
pay existing obligations and trade commitments related to our oil and gas operations. Our primary source
of liquidity is the cash flow generated from operating activities. The prices we receive for future oil and
gas sales and the level of production will significantly impact future cash flows from operating activities.
No prediction can be made as to the oil and gas prices we will receive in the future. Production volumes
will be dependent upon, among other things, the amount of future capital expenditures (which are also
dependent on product prices), the outcome of new wells that will be drilled, and potential acquisitions of
producing properties. Strategically, Cimarex plans to profitably grow its production volumes through a
moderate risk-drilling program, supplemented from time-to-time by acquisitions.

Cash flows provided by operations for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $104.5 million
compared to $162.4 million and $110.0 million for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The $57.9 million decrease from 2001 was primarily the result of lower natural oil and gas
prices in 2002 compared to 2001 and 2000.

Cash flows used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $73.8 million
compared to $101.4 million and $72.7 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively. The $27.6 million
decrease in 2002 was due to a reduced capital expenditure budget resulting from lower commodity prices
during 2002, as well as H&P reducing the budget for exploration in the first part of the year due to the
planned spin-off of Cimarex from H&P.

Cash flows used by financing activities in 2002 were $17.6 million versus $61.4 million in 2001,
a decrease of $43.8 million. Cash flows used by financing activities for the year ended September 30,
2000 were $37.1 million, $24.3 million lower than in 2001. The decrease in cash used by financing
activities in 2002 compared to fiscal year 2001 resulted from a reduction in payments to H&P during the
year ended December 31, 2002.

Upon closing of the acquisition of Key, Cimarex acquired $2.1 million of cash and cash
equivalents and assumed $36.0 million of debt. In October 2002, Cimarex closed on a three-year
$400 million Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility. This credit facility had an initial borrowing base
of $275 million and Cimarex elected a $200 million initial commitment amount. The borrowing base is
subject to redetermination each April and Cctober. Borrowings under this facility bear interest at LIBOR
rates plus 1.25 — 2.00 percent, depending on the outstanding principal amount. Unused borrowings are
subject to a commitment fee of 0.375 — 0.50 percent, also depending on borrowing base usage. The credit
facility is secured by mortgages on the Company’s oil and gas properties and the stock of its subsidiaries.
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The Company is also subject to customary financial and non-financial covenants. Borrowings under the
facility were $32.0 million at December 31, 2002 with an average interest rate of 5.5 percent.

Subsequent to the acquisition on Key, we expect the incremental net cash flows generated from
the Key oil and gas properties will be used to fund capital expenditures.

At December 31, 2002, we had contractual obligations and material commitments as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years § Years
(In thousands)
Long-term debt $ 32,000 $ — 3 32,000 $ — 3 —
Operating leases 10,052 1,646 3,363 3,046 1,997
Drilling commitments 10,165 10,165 — — —
Seismic program 1,566 1,566 — — _—
Transportation and delivery 4,060 594 1,189 1,189 1,088
Purchase obligations 2,859 2,859 — — —
Total obligations $ 60,702 % 16,830 % 36,552 $ 4235 § 3,085

In addition to the items in the table above, we have issued parental financial guarantees of $7.0
million related to our marketing business for the benefit of companies we purchase gas from.

CESI also has some firm sales contracts to deliver fixed volumes of natural gas at index-related
prices. These contracts vary in length from three months to one year. As of December 31, 2002, Cimarex
had an obligation to deliver approximately 4.2 Bef of natural gas.

All of the commitments were routine and were made in the normal course of our business. We
believe that cash on hand, net cash generated from operations and amounts available under our existing
line of credit will be adequate to meet future liquidity needs, including satisfying our financial obligations
and funding our operations and exploration and development activities.

Critical Accounting Policies

We rely on management estimates and assumptions to prepare our financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant estimates with regard to our consolidated financial statements include the estimate of
proved oil and gas reserve volumes and the related present value of estimated future net cash flows. Each
quarter end, proved oil and gas reserve quantities are based on estimates prepared by Cimarex’s
engineers, in accordance with guidelines established by the SEC. We engaged Ryder Scott Company,
L.P., independent petroleum engineers, to review our December 31, 2002 oil and gas reserve estimates
associated with the majority of the value of our oil and gas reserves. There are numerous uncertainties
inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves, projecting future rates of production and the timing
of development expenditures. Future oil and gas prices may vary significantly from the prices in effect at
the time the estimates are made. The estimate of proved oil and gas reserve volumes and the related
present value of estimated future net cash flows can affect the charge for DD&A and the net carrying
value of our oil and gas properties, as discussed below.

We use the full cost method of accounting for our investment in oil and gas properties. As
prescribed by full cost accounting rules, we capitalize all costs directly associated with property
acquisition, exploration, and development activities. Our exploration and development costs include dry
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hole costs, geological and geophysical costs, direct overhead related to exploration and development
activities and other costs incurred for the purpose of finding oil and gas reserves. Salaries and benefits
paid to employees directly involved in the exploration and development of oil and gas properties as well
as other internal costs that can be specifically identified with acquisition, exploration and development
activities are also capitalized.

Our rate of recording DD&A is dependent upon our estimate of proved reserves. If the estimates
of proved reserves decline, the rate at which we record DD&A increases. Such a decline in reserves may
result from lower market prices, which may make it economically unfeasible to drill for and produce
higher cost wells. We utilize the units-of-production method to calculate our DD&A expense.

Proved oil and gas reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas
liquids which geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in
future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. Reservoirs are
considered proved if economic producibility is supported by either actual production or conclusive
formation test. The area of a reservoir considered proved includes (1) that portion delineated by drilling
and defined by gas-oil and/or oil-water contacts, if any, and (2) the immediately adjoining portions not yet
drilled, but which can be reasonably judged as economically productive on the basis of available
geological and engineering data.

In accordance with full cost accounting rules, we are subject to a limitation on the capitalized
costs of our oil and gas properties. Under these rules, capitalized costs of proved oil and gas properties,
net of accumulated DD&A and deferred income taxes, may not exceed the present value of estimated
future net cash flows from proved oil and gas reserves, discounted at 10 percent, plus the lower of cost or
fair value of unproved properties, as adjusted for related tax effects and deferred tax revenues (the “full
cost ceiling limitation”). These rules generally require pricing future oil and gas production at the
unescalated oil and gas prices in effect at the end of each fiscal quarter and require a write-down if the
“ceiling” is exceeded. A full cost ceiling write-down is a non-cash charge to earnings. Moreover, the
expense may not be reversed in future periods, even if higher oil and gas prices subsequently increase the
full cost ceiling limitation. Based on oil and gas prices in effect on December 31, 2002, we were not
required to record a full cost ceiling write-down.

Our results of operations are also highly dependent upon the prices we receive for natural gas and
crude oil production, and those prices have been volatile and unpredictable in response to changing
market forces. Nearly all of our revenue is from the sale of oil and gas, so these fluctuations, positive and
negative, can have a significant impact on our results of operations and cash flows.

Accordingly, our natural gas revenue is impacted by these price fluctuations. If we wanted to
attempt to smooth out the effect of commodity price fluctuations, we could enter into various derivative
or off-balance sheet arrangements, such as non-speculative hedge arrangements, commodity swap
agreements, forward sale contracts, commodity futures, options, and other similar agreements relating to
natural gas and crude oil. To date, we have not used any of these financial instruments or arrangements to
mitigate commodity price changes. If we decide to use derivative arrangements in the future, they could
have a significant impact, positive or negative, on our results of operations and cash flows.

Cimarex recorded approximately $45.8 million of goodwill in conjunction with the purchase price
allocation of the Key acquisition. Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 142,
Gooawill and Other Intangibles, requires us to assess the carrying value of the goodwill on an annual
basis. A more frequent assessment is required if certain events occur that reasonably indicate an
impairment may have occurred. The volatility of the commodity prices may cause more frequent
assessments.

We use a two-component process to evaluate goodwill, a cash flow model and the equity value of
the Company. The relative weight of the two measures and the cash flow assumptions is subjectively
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evaluated by management based on management’s view of the going concern long-term fair value of the
exploration and production segment. The weighting of the two measures could create different results,
including a possible impairment. No impairment was indicated at December 31, 2002 based on our
calculation.

Deferred income taxes are computed using the liability method and are provided on all temporary
differences between the financial basis and the tax basis of Cimarex’s assets and liabilities. Valuation
allowances are established to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that more likely than not will be
realized.

Prior to the spin-off of Cimarex from H&P on September 30, 2002, Cimarex’s operating results
historically had been included in consolidated federal and state income tax returns filed by H&P. A tax
sharing agreement exists between Cimarex and H&P to allocate and settle among themselves the
consolidated tax liability on a shared company basis through September 30, 2002 (see Note 6 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Cimarex recognizes revenues from oil and gas sales on the sales method with revenue recognized
based on actual volumes of oil and gas sold to purchasers.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 143,
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and
reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated
asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be
made, and that the associated asset retirement costs be capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the
long-lived asset. SFAS No. 143 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. We analyzed the effect of SFAS No. 143 and the effect of adopting SFAS No. 143 on
January 1, 2003 and expect to record an increase to the full cost pool of approximately $10.3 million, a
decrease to accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization of approximately $5.9 million, an
increase to long-term liabilities for plugging and abandonment costs of approximately $13.7 million and
an increase to the deferred taxes of approximately $1.0 million. We will also recognize income related to
a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of approximately $1.6 million, net of income taxes
of approximately $1.0 million.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets. This statement supercedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of, and amends APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting
the Results of Operations—Reporting the Effects of a Disposal of a Segment of a Business and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions. SFAS No. 144 retains the
basic framework of SFAS No. 121, resolves certain implementation issues of SFAS No. 121, extends
applicability to discontinued operations, and broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to
include a component of an entity. SFAS No. 144 was effective January 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS
No. 144 had no impact on the financial position or results of operations of Cimarex.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities. SFAS No. 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated
after December 31, 2002. The statement requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or
disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal
plan. Examples of costs covered by the standard include lease termination costs and certain employee
severance costs that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation, plant closing, or other exit
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or disposal activity, We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have a material impact on the
financial position or results of operations of Cimarex.

In December 2002, FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure, which amended SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 148 provided alternative methods
of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No.
123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results.
Cimarex adopted SFAS No. 148 for disclosure purposes for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Future Trends

During 2003, we anticipate exploration and development expenditures of approximately $150
million, including $90 million for the Mid-Continent region and $40-45 million in the Gulf Coast area.
The amount and allocation of our future capital expenditures depends on a number of factors, including
the impact of oil and gas prices on available cash flow and investment opportunities, the availability of
rigs, the availability of debt and equity capital, the availability of attractive drilling opportunities, the rate
in which we evaluate these opportunities and our drilling success. Although much less predictable, we
are actively pursuing the acquisition of proved reserves that we believe have exploration or development
potential. We plan to fund these expenditures with cash provided by operating activities, supplemented by
borrowings under our bank line of credit to the extent necessary.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Price Fluctuations

Our results of operations are highly dependent upon the prices we receive for natural gas and
crude oil production, and those prices are constantly changing in response to market forces. Nearly all of
our revenue is from the sale of oil and gas, so these fluctuations, positive and negative, can have a
significant impact on our results of operations and cash flows.

Oil and gas price realizations for 2002 ranged from a monthly low of $2.02 per Mcfand $17.13
per Bbl, and a monthly high of $3.65 per Mcf and $27.44 per Bbl, respectively. It is impossible to predict
future oil and gas prices with any degree of certainty.

If we wanted to attempt to smooth out the effect of commodity price fluctuations, we could enter
into non-speculative hedge arrangements, commodity swap agreements, forward sale contracts,
commodity futures, options and other similar agreements relating to natural gas and crude oil. To date,
we have not used any of these financial instruments to mitigate commodity price changes.

Any sustained weakness in oil and gas prices may affect our financial condition and results of
operations, and may also reduce the amount of net oil and gas reserves that we can produce economically.
Any reduction in reserves, including reductions due to price fluctuations, can have an adverse effect on
our ability to obtain capital for our exploration and development activities and could cause us to record a
reduction in the carrying value of our oil and gas properties.

Interest Rate Risk

Our reported earnings are impacted by changes in interest rates. Any fluctuation in the rate will
directly affect the amount of interest expense we report. At December 31, 2002, we had $32 million of
debt outstanding at an average interest rate of 5.5 percent. The due date of these borrowings is October
2005. At our election, our interest charges are based on either the prime rate or the LIBOR rate plus a
margin predetermined by our debt agreement. As the interest rate is variable and is reflective of current
market conditions, the carrying value of our debt approximates its fair value.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Cimarex Energy Co.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cimarex Energy Co. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the three months ended December 31,
2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Cimarex Energy Co. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2002 and
the three months ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 18, 2003
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors
Cimarex Energy Co.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholder’s equity and
cash flows of Cimarex Energy Co., (See Note 1) for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000.
These financial statements are the responsibility of Cimarex Energy Co.’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated results of operations and cash flows of Cimarex Energy Co. (See Note 1) for each of the two
years in the period ended September 30, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
May &, 2002, except as to the first paragraph of Note 1
as to which the date is September 30, 2002.
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CIMAREX ENERGY CO.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share information)

December 31,

Assets 2002 2001
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,261 $ 7.170
Accounts receivable -

Trade, net of allowance 7,524 5,229

Oil and gas sales 27,502 7.133

Marketing, net of allowance 23,250 10,734
Inventories 3,986 4,840
Deferred income taxes 2,073 870
Qther current assets 2,949 1,446

Total current assets 87,545 37,422
Oil and gas properties at cost, using the full cost method of accounting:
Proved properties 1,172,488 801,248
Unproved properties and properties under development,
not being amortized 23,941 26,829
1,196,429 828,077
Less — accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (665,711) (617,676)
Net oil and gas properties 530,718 210,401
Fixed assets, less accumulated depreciation of $5,163 and $4,257 6,849 3,904
Goodwill 45,836 —
Other assets, net 3,338 239
Total $ 674,286 $ 251,966
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable -

Trade $ 9,500 $ 6,292

Marketing 12,839 2,499
Due to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. — 13,089
Accrued expenses -

Exploration and development 7415 2,611

Taxes other than income 3,743 3919

Other 10,734 7,608
Revenue payable 24,022 2,063

Total current liabilities 68,253 38,081
Long-term debt 32,000 —
Deferred income taxes 127,023 37,286
Other liabilities 2,130 1,517
Total liabilities 229,406 76,884
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 15,000,000 shares authorized,

no shares issued — —
Common stock, $0.01 par vatue, 100,000,000 shares authorized,

41,410,308 and 26,591,321 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 414 266
Paid-in capital 243,420 —
Unearned compensation (10,814) —
Retained earnings 211,860 174,816

444 880 175,082
$ 674,286 $ 251,966

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIMAREX ENERGY CO.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended For the Three Months
December 31, September 30, Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001 2000
(Unaudited)
Revenues:
Gas sales $ 120,210 § 192962 $ 131,056  § 20,864 $ 50,535
Oil sales 29,172 22,815 24,601 4,107 7,147
Marketing sales 60,193 100,236 78,921 14,541 28,264
Other (5) 765 2,443 84 461
209,570 316,778 237,021 39,596 86,407
Costs and expenses:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 49,231 49,699 41,704 8,972 9,477
Reduction to carrying value of oil and gas properties — 78,082 — — —
Marketing purchases . 57.515 93,819 74,720 12,880 23,702
Production 19,427 13,091 10,687 4,197 2,638
Taxes other than income 13,154 18,965 12,092 2,559 4,194
General and administrative 8.568 10,068 7,598 3,637 2,378
Stock compensation 125 — — — —
Financing costs -
Interest expense 620 (1,509) 618 141 107
Capitalized interest (206) — — — —
Interest income (243) (275) (463) (43) (133)
148,191 261,940 146,956 32,343 42,363
Income before income tax expense 61,379 54,838 90,065 7.253 44,044
Income tax expense 21,560 19.585 32,679 2774 16,462
Net income $ 39,819 % 35253 % 57386 % 4479 8 27,582
Eamings per share:
Basic $ 132 8 133 % 216 S 017 % 1.04
Diluted $ 131 $ 133 % 216 $ 0.17 S 1.04
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 30,239 26,591 26,591 26,591 26.591
Diluted 30,317 26,591 26,591 26,591 26,591
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Reduction to carrying value of oil and gas
properties
Deferred income taxes
Amortization of restricted stock compensation
Other
Change in operating assets and liabilities,
net of effects of the acquisition of
Key Production Company, Inc.:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Merger costs
Cash received in connection with acquisition
Proceeds from sale of assets
Other capital expenditures
Restricted cash

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Long-term borrowings
Payments on long-term debt
Financing costs
Net (distributions to) contributions from
Helmerich & Payne. Inc.
Change in amount due (to) from Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

CIMAREX ENERGY CO.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

$

$

Three Months
Years Ended Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 200 2001
39819 § 35253 % 57386 S 4,479
49,231 49,699 41,704 8,972
— 78,082 — —
21,428 (11,138) 11,707 2,805
125 — _ —
58 (167) 1) (241)
(15,996) 9,658 (18,964) 7,387
1,770 (1,994) (371) 541
934) 6,373 (110) (396)
— 164 (204) —
17,010 5,550 8,876 (16,656)
(8,321) (9,370) 10,090 (3,319)
265 248 (71) 32
104,455 162,358 109,992 3,604
(66,458) (100,201} (71,902) (14,667)
(5,079) — — _
2,135 — — —_
313 205 142 681
(2,596) (1,387) (898) (345)
(2,066) — — —
(73,751) (101,383) (72,658) (14,331)
41,016 — — —
(45,016) _ — —
(927) —_ — —
— (61,430) (37,078) 4,808
(13,089) — —_ 13,089
403 — — —
(17,613) (61,430) (37.078) 17.897
13,091 (455) 256 7.170
7,170 455 199 —
20,261 $ — 3 455 8 7.170

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, September 30, 1999

Net income
Net distributions to Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Balance, September 30, 2000

Net income
Net distributions to Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Balance, September 30, 2001

Net income

Net contributions from Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Balance, December 31, 2001

Net income

Issuance of restricted stock awards in
conjuction with the Cimarex spinoff

Common stock issued for the acquisition
of Key Production Company, Inc.

Net distributions to Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Issuance of restricted stock awards

Common stock reacquired and retired

Amortization of unearned compensation

Exercise of stock options, net of tax benefit
of $282 recorded in paid-in capital

Balance, December 31, 2002

CIMAREX ENERGY CO.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands)
Totatl
Common Stock Paid-in Unearned Retained Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Compensation _ Earnings Equity
26,591  $ 266 % —  § — § 172398 § 172,664
— — —_ —_ 57,386 57,386
— — —_ — (37,078) (37,078)
26,591 266 — — 192,706 192,972
— — — — 35,253 35,253
- — —_ — (61,430) (61.430)
26,591 266 — — 166,529 166,795
— — — — 4,479 4,479
_ — — — 3,808 3,808
26,591 266 — —_ 174,816 175,082
— — — — 39,819 39.819
38 — — (156) 156 —
14,079 141 232,212 (159) — 232,194
— —_ — — (2,931 (2,931
644 6 10,721 (10,727) — —_

(13) — 197) — —_ 197)
— — — 228 — 228
71 1 684 — — 685
41,410 § 414 $ 243420 $ (10814 $ 211860 $ 444,880

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIMAREX ENERGY CO.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Cimarex Energy Co. (Cimarex or the Company) was formed in February 2002 as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (H&P). In July 2002, H&P contributed its oil and gas exploration
and production operations and the common stock of Cimarex Energy Services, Inc. (CESI), which is
involved in natural gas marketing, to Cimarex. As a result of a dividend declared and paid by H&P on
September 30, 2002, in the form of 26,591,321 shares of Cimarex common stock, Cimarex was spun-off
and became a stand-alone Company. All par value, common stock and per share amounts have been
retroactively restated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements to reflect the spin-off.

Also on September 30, 2002, Cimarex acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of
Key Production Company, Inc. (Key) in a tax-free exchange. Cimarex issued one share of its common
stock for each of the 14,079,243 shares of Key common stock outstanding as of that date. The acquisition
of Key has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The acquisition of Key is
reflected in the accompanying balance sheet and in the results of operations and cash flows for the period
subsequent to the acquisition on September 30, 2002.

On September 30, 2002, Cimarex changed its fiscal year from September 30 to December 31.

The accounts of Cimarex and its subsidiaries are presented in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. All intercompany accounts and transactions were eliminated in consolidation.

We make certain estimates and assumptions to prepare our financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period and in disclosures of commitments and contingencies. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

The more significant areas requiring the use of management’s estimates and judgments relate to
preparation of estimated oil and gas reserves, the use of these oil and gas reserves in calculating depletion,
depreciation and amortization, the use of the estimates of future net revenues in computing the ceiling test
limitations and estimates of abandonment obligations used in such calculations. Estimates and judgments
are also required in determining the reserves for bad debts, the impairments of undeveloped properties,
the assessment of goodwill and the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for prior periods have
been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

2. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Cimarex is an “independent oil and gas producer” actively engaged in the acquisition,
exploration, development and production of oil and gas properties. Cimarex explores for and produces oil
and gas in the United States primarily in Oklahoma, Kansas, Texas, and Louisiana and markets natural
gas through CESL
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivaients

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in banks and investments readily convertible into cash
which had original maturities within three months from the date of purchase.

Inventories

Inventories, primarily materials and supplies, are valued at the lower of cost or market.

Oil and Gas Properties

Cimarex uses the full cost method of accounting for its oil and gas operations. All costs
associated with property acquisition, exploration and development activities are capitalized. Exploration
and development costs include dry hole costs, geological and geophysical costs, direct overhead related to
exploration and development activities and other costs incurred for the purpose of finding oil and gas
reserves. Salaries and benefits paid to employees directly involved in the exploration and development of
oil and gas properties as well as other internal costs that can be directly identified with acquisition,
exploration and development activities are also capitalized. Cimarex uses the units-of-production method
to amortize capitalized costs.

Significant estimates with regard to our consolidated financial statements include the estimate of
proved oil and gas reserve volumes and the related present value of estimated future net cash flows. Each
quarter end, proved oil and gas reserve quantities are based on estimates prepared by Cimarex’s
engineers, in accordance with guidelines established by the SEC. We engaged independent petroleum
engineers to review our December 31, 2002 oil and gas reserve estimates associated with the majority of
the reserve value. There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves,
projecting future rates of production and the timing of development expenditures. Future oil and gas
prices may vary significantly from the prices in effect at the time the estimates are made. The estimate of
proved oil and gas reserve volumes and the related present value of estimated future net cash flows can
effect depletion, depreciation and amortization (DD&A) expense and the net carrying value of our oil and
gas properties, as discussed below.

In accordance with the full cost accounting rules, capitalized costs of proved oil and gas
properties, net of accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization and deferred income taxes, may
not exceed the present value of estimated future net cash flows from proved oil and gas reserves,
discounted at 10 percent, plus the lower of cost or fair value of unproved properties, as adjusted for
related tax effects and deferred tax revenues (the “full cost ceiling limitation™). If capitalized costs
exceed this limit, the excess must be charged to expense. The expense may not be reversed in future
periods, even if higher oil and gas prices subsequently increase the full cost ceiling limitation. The
Company recorded a reduction in the carrying value of oil and gas properties of $78.1 million during the
year ended September 30, 2001.

The costs of certain unevaluated properties are not being amortized. On a quarterly basis, such
costs are evaluated for transfer to the full cost pool resulting from the determination of proved reserves,
impairments, or reductions in value. To the extent that the evaluation indicates these properties are
impaired, the amount of the impairment is added to the capitalized costs to be amortized. Abandonments
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of unproved properties are accounted for as adjustments of capitalized costs to the proved oil and gas
properties with no losses recognized.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to production expense in the period
incurred. Proceeds from the sale of oil and gas properties are credited against capitalized costs, unless
such proceeds would significantly alter the amortization base.

Goodwill

Cimarex recorded goodwill in the purchase of Key on September 30, 2002. Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, states that
goodwill and other intangibles determined to have an infinite life are no longer amortized, however, these
assets are reviewed for impairment once a year and when circumstances indicate that an impairment may
have occurred. The evaluation of the estimated fair value of the goodwill is performed on individual
reporting units. The exploration and production segment is considered the only reporting unit to which
goodwill has been assigned.

The Company uses the estimated fair value approach to value its goodwill asset. This approach
involves evaluating the estimated fair value of the reporting unit, compared to its carrying amount,
including goodwill. The estimated fair value of the exploration and production segment of our business is
based on numerous factors, each individually weighted, to estimate total reporting unit estimated fair
value. If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the
reporting unit is considered not impaired. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its estimated
fair value, then a measurement of any impairment loss must be performed. Measuring any indicated
impairment is done by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying
amount of that goodwill. Any deficiency of the implied goodwill amount compared to the carrying value
of goodwill is recorded as an impairment up to the carrying amount. As no deferred taxes have been
established for goodwill, any impairment would not be subject to a deferred tax benefit in the income tax
provision. Subsequent reversal of a previous goodwill impairment loss is prohibited once the
measurement of that loss is completed.

Restricied Cash
Cash held in bank accounts that is restricted as to use is segregated.
Revenue Recognition

Cimarex recognizes revenues from oil and gas sales based on actual volumes of oil and gas sold
to purchasers.

Gas Imbalances
We use the sales method of accounting for gas imbalances. Under this method, revenue is
recorded on the basis of gas actually sold by the Company. Oil and gas reserves are adjusted to the extent

there are sufficient quantities of natural gas to make up an imbalance. As of December 31, 2002,
Cimarex had reduced reserves by 420 MMcf. In situations where there are insufficient reserves available
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to make-up an overproduced imbalance, then a liability is established. The natural gas imbalance liability
at December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $0.9 million at each period end.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are computed using the liability method. Deferred income taxes provided
on all temporary differences between the financial basis and the tax basis of Cimarex’s assets and
liabilities. Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that more
likely than not will be realized.

Prior to the spin-off of Cimarex from H&P on September 30, 2002, Cimarex’s operating results
historically had been included in consolidated federal and state income tax returns filed by H&P. A tax
sharing agreement exists between Cimarex and H&P to allocate and settle among themselves the
consolidated tax liability on a shared company basis through September 30, 2002 (see Note 6).

Stock Options

Cimarex applies Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related interpretations to account for all stock option grants and grants of restricted stock.
No compensation cost has been recognized for stock options granted as the option prices were the same as
the market price of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, requires the Company to provide pro
forma information regarding net income as if compensation cost for Cimarex’s stock option plans had
been determined in accordance with the fair value based method prescribed in SFAS No. 123. To provide
the required pro forma information, Cimarex estimated the theoretical fair value of each stock option at
the grant date by using the Black Scholes option-pricing model.

In December 2002, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, which amended SFAS No. 123.
SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the
disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the
effect of the method used on reported results. Cimarex adopted SFAS No. 148 for disclosure purposes
only in 2002.
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Had compensation cost for the Cimarex plan been determined based on the fair value at the grant
dates for awards to employees under the plan, consistent with the methodology of SFAS No. 123,
Cimarex’s pro forma net income would have been as indicated below for calendar 2002. For periods
prior to the spin-off of Cimarex and the issuance of Cimarex stock options in exchange for H&P options
held by the employees of the Company, the pro forma compensation expense was determined based on
estimated fair value of the H&P options issued (in thousands except per share amounts):

Three Months
Years Ended Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001
Net income, as reported $ 39,819 $ 35253 % 57,386 % 4,479
Less: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for
all awards, net of related tax
effects 1,328 1,270 836 318
Pro forma net income $ 38,491 $ 33,983 § 56,550 % 4,161
Earnings per share:
Basic ~ as reported $ 1.32 $ 133 8§ 216 § 0.17
Basic ~ pro forma $ 1.27 $ 128 % 213§ 0.16
Diluted - as reported $ 1.31 $ 133 § 216 § 0.17
Diluted - pro forma $ 1.27 $ 128 § 213§ 0.16

As required by SFAS No. 123 and amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, the above pro forma data reflects the effect of stock option
grants to employees of Cimarex beginning with H&P options issued in 1997. These pro forma amounts
may not be representative of future disclosures since the estimated fair value of stock options is amortized
to expense over the vesting period and additional options may be granted in future years.

The weighted-average fair values of the Cimarex and H&P stock options granted to employees of
Cimarex (adjusted for the spin-off conversion ratio) at their grant date during calendar 2002, fiscal 2001
and 2000 were $8.16, $6.56, and $5.51, respectively, and was $6.21 for grants made in the quarter ended
December 31, 2001. The estimated theoretical fair value of each option granted is calculated using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used
in the model:
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Three Months
Years Ended Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001
Expected years until exercise 7.5 4.5 5.5 4.5
Expected stock volatility 38.9% 43.1% 40.8% 47.7%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rate 3.8% 5.2% 6.0% 4.0%

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share includes no dilution and is computed by dividing net income available to
common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period.
Diluted earnings per share reflects the impact of potentially dilutive securities on weighted average
number of shares.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of Cimarex’s cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities. The
allowance for doubtful accounts for trade and marketing receivables was $0.6 million and $0.7 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001. As the interest rate is variable on our long-term debt and is reflective of
current market conditions, the carrying value of our debt approximates its fair value.

Comprehensive Income

Cimarex applies the provisions of SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. Cimarex had
no comprehensive income for the periods presented.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemernts

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.
SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement
of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs and amends FASB Statement
No. 19, Financial Accounting and Reporting by Qil and Gas Producing Companies. SFAS No. 143
requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in
which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made, and that the associated asset
retirement costs be capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. SFAS No. 143 is
effective January 1, 2003 for Cimarex. We analyzed the effect of SFAS No. 143 and the effect of
adoption on January 1, 2003 and expect to record an increase to the full cost pool of approximately $10.3
million, a decrease to accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization of approximately $5.9
million, an increase to long-term liabilities for plugging and abandonment costs of approximately $13.7
million, an increase to the deferred tax liability of approximately $1.0 million and income reported as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of approximately $1.6 million, net of income taxes
of $1.0 million.
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In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets. This statement supercedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of, and amends APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting
the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of a Disposal of a Segment of a Business and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions. SEAS No. 144 retains the
basic framework of SFAS No. 121, resolves certain implementation issues of SFAS No. 121, extends
applicability to discontinued operations, and broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to
include a component of an entity. SFAS No. 144 was effective January 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS
No. 144 had no impact on the financial position or results of operations of Cimarex.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities. SFAS No. 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated
after December 31, 2002. The statement requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or
disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal
plan. Examples of costs covered by the standard include lease termination costs and certain employee
severance costs that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation, plan closing, or other exit
or disposal activity. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have a material impact on the
financial position or results of operations of Cimarex.

4. ACQUISITION OF KEY PRODUCTION COMPANY, INC.

On September 30, 2002, Cimarex acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of Key
in a tax-free exchange pursuant to which Key became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cimarex. Cimarex
issued one share of its common stock for each of the 14,079,243 shares of Key common stock outstanding
as of that date. Cimarex also issued one stock option to acquire Cimarex common stock to replace each
of the 785,501 stock options to acquire Key common stock outstanding. The acquisition of Key has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

Key is an independent energy company engaged in the exploration, development, acquisition and
production of oil and gas in the continental United States. Total proved reserves of Key at the date of its
acquisition by Cimarex were 94.7 Bef of gas and 9.1 MMBDbls of oil. Approximately 99 percent of the
reserves acquired were classified as proved developed. Key’s exploration and development activities are
primarily in the Anadarko basin of Oklahoma, the Hardeman basin of north Texas, the Laredo field in
south Texas, the Mississippi Salt basin, south Louisiana, and northern California. Key also had
production operations and exploration acreage in Wyoming and other Rocky Mountain states.

Our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2002, includes the estimated fair value of
assets and liabilities of Key on September 30, 2002, as well as the adjustments required to record the
acquisition in accordance with the purchase method of accounting. The final purchase price and the final
allocation of the purchase price are subject to adjustment based on the actual fair value of current assets
and liabilities, long-term liabilities and final tax basis. Key’s final tax basis will not be determined until
Key files its tax return for the tax year ending September 30, 2002 as a result of the merger with Cimarex.
Any adjustment to the Key tax basis will be accounted for as an adjustment to goodwill. We expect that
the purchase price will be finalized in the second quarter of 2003, upon completion of Key’s final income
tax return. The results of operations of Key are included in our consolidated statements of operations for
the period since the acquisition on September 30, 2002.
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In the acquisition, Cimarex issued 14,079,243 shares of common stock valued at $224.7 million
to the Key stockholders. The value of the shares was based on the average closing prices of the shares of
Key for the two days prior to, the day of and two days following the announcement of the transaction.
Cimarex also issued stock options valued at $7.5 million in exchange for outstanding Key stock options.
Costs incurred by Cimarex in connection with the transaction were $5.1 million. The transaction includes
goodwill of approximately $45.8 million, none of which is deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill
represents the excess of the total purchase price over the fair value of the oil and gas properties and other
net assets acquired.

The following table summarizes the allocation of assets and liabilities acquired from Key:

(In thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,135
Accounts receivable 19,184
Inventory and other assets 3,210
Unproved oil and gas properties 12,143
Proved oil and gas properties 284,996
Goodwill 45,836
Total assets acquired 367,504
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 32,459
Long-term debt 36,000
Deferred income taxes 61,580
Other liabilities 348
Unearned compensation (159)
Total liabilities acquired 130,228
Net assets acquired $ 237276

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of
Cimarex and Key, and was prepared as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the periods
presented. The unaudited pro forma data presented is based on numerous assumptions and is not
necessarily indicative of future results of operations. The unaudited pro forma results of operations for
the year ended September 30, 2001 includes Key’s results of operations for the year ended December 31,
2001. Included in the pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2002 is $11.0 million of merger
and severance related expenses incurred by Key.

Unaudited
Three Months
Years Ended Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2001
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Total revenues $ 267,935 $ 425,663 $ 57,493
Net income {loss) 34,474 (6,595) 3,395
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.84 (0.16) 0.08
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT

In conjunction with the acquisition of Key, Cimarex assumed Key’s long-term credit agreement
with an outstanding balance of $36 million. In October 2002, Cimarex closed on a three year 3400
million Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility led by Bank One, N.A. This facility replaced the
previous Key facility. The new facility has a borrowing base of $275 million and Cimarex elected a $200
million initial commitment amount. The borrowing base is subject to redetermination each April and
October.

Borrowings under this facility bear interest at a LIBOR rate plus 1.25 — 2.00 percent, based on the
outstanding principal amount. Unused borrowings are subject to a commitment fee of 0.375 — 0.50
percent, depending on the borrowing base usage. The weighted average interest rate on the outstanding
debt for the three months ended December 31, 2002 was 5.8 percent.

The credit facility is secured by mortgages on the Company’s oil and gas properties and the stock
of its subsidiaries and is due October 2005. The Company is also subject to customary financial and non-
financial covenants. We were in compliance with the covenants of the agreement as of December 31,
2002. Borrowings under the new facility were $32.0 million at December 31, 2002, leaving $168.0
million available for future borrowings.

6. INCOME TAXES

Federal income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2002, September 30, 2001 and
2000 and the three months ended December 31, 2001 differ from the amounts that would be provided by
applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate due to the effect of state income taxes, percentage depletion and
merger costs.

The final determination of Cimarex tax basis will not be known until H&P files its tax return for
its fiscal year end September 30, 2002, based on the terms of the tax sharing agreement between H&P and
Cimarex. Any adjustment to the Cimarex tax basis will be accounted for as a dividend to or contribution
from H&P.

Key’s final tax basis will not be determined until Key files its tax return for the tax year ending
September 30, 2002 as a result of the merger with Cimarex. Any adjustment to the Key tax basis will be
accounted for as an adjustment to goodwill.

Both the Cimarex and Key tax returns are expected to be filed during second quarter 2003. Any
adjustment to the tax basis will be made during the second quarter.
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The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Three Months
Years Ended Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001
Current taxes:

Federal $ — S 27,219 § 19,085 § 103
State 132 3,504 1,887 (134)
132 30,723 20,972 3D
Deferred taxes 21,428 (11,138) 11,707 2,805
$ 21,560 $ 19,585 32,679 S 2,774

Reconciliations of the income tax expense at the federal statutory rate to the total income tax

expense are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended Three Months
Ended
December 31, September 39, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001
Provision at statutory rate S 21,482  § 19,193 S 31,523 $ 2,539
Effect of state taxes 1,841 1,024 2,190 218
Non-conventional fuel source
credits utilized (313) (367) (379) (92)
Excess statutory depletion 27D (323) (556) &N
Deductible merger related
costs (1,178) — — —
Other 6)) 58 (99) 190
Income tax expense S 21,560 % 19,585 $ 32,679 3 2,774
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The components of Cimarex’s net deferred tax liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2002 2001
Long-term:
Assets -
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 323§ —
Credit carryforwards 3,256 —
Long-term assets and liabilities 1,756 952
5,335 952
Liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment (132,358) (38,238)
Net, long-term deferred tax liability (127,023) (37,286)
Current:
Financial accruals 2,073 870
Net current deferred tax assets 2,073 870
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (124,950) § (36,416)

A net tax operating loss carryforward of approximately $851,000 exists at December 31, 2002,
which expires in the years 2008 through 2019. These net operating losses (NOLs) were acquired as part
of an acquisition, and therefore, are subject to annual limitations.

7. STOCK PLANS
Stock Options

At the date of distribution on September 30, 2002, H&P stock options held by former H&P
employees who became Cimarex employees were converted into Cimarex stock options exercisable for
1,630,269 shares of Cimarex common stock based on the intrinsic value at the date of the distribution.
The weighted average exercise price for the newly issued options was $13.24 per share. The tables below
show the former H&P stock options activity through September 30, 2002, at which time these options
were converted to Cimarex stock options. No accounting charge resulted from this exchange as the
number of options and the option price were converted as to ensure that economic interest of option
holders before and after the spin-off were unchanged. As the spin-off from H&P was for a fixed number
of shares of Cimarex common stock, no activity associated with option exercises are reflected in the
statements of stockholders’ equity prior to September 30, 2002.

On September 30, 2002, stock options for 785,501 shares of Key common stock held by former
employees of Key were acquired and converted to Cimarex stock options on a one-for-one basis. These
options vested upon closing of the merger. The weighted average exercise price for these newly issued
options was $11.06 per share.
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The following summary reflects the status of stock options granted to employees and directors as
of December 31, 2002, and changes during the year:

Weighted
Average
Optiens Exercise Optiens
Qutstanding Price Exercisable
H&P Activity:

Outstanding as of September 30, 1999 569,014 $ 21.95
Granted 186,000 24.75
Exercised (103,736) 16.28
Forfeited/Expired (7,500) 24.83

Outstanding as of September 30, 2000 643,778 23.81 182,689
Granted 216,000 32.31
Exercised (190,830) 22.76
Forfeited/Expired (6,250) 27.11

Outstanding as of September 30, 2001 662,698 26.82 160,064
Granted 205,000 29.78
Exercised (4,050) 16.15
Forfeited/Expired (5,250) 27.94

Outstanding as of December 31, 2001 858,398 27.56 355,897
Exercised (68,073) 20.70
Forfeited/Expired (23,500) 29.48
Outstanding on September 30, 2002, pre spin-off 766,825 28.15

Cimarex Activity:

Conversion to Cimarex stock options upon spin-off 863,444 —
Outstanding on September 30, 2002, post spin-off 1,630,269 13.24
Acquired in Key acquisition 785,501 11.06
Granted 1,290,800 16.69
Exercised (71,294) 5.65
Forfeited/Expired (3,189) 14.01

Outstanding as of December 31, 2002 3,632,087 $ 14.14 1,720,486
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The following table summarizes information about Cimarex stock options held by employees
and directors at December 31, 2002:

Outstanding Steck Opticns Exercisable Stock Options
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Contractual Exercise Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices QOptions Life Price Options Price
$5.63t0 $7.51 23,386 2.2 Years $ 6.49 23,386 $ 6.49
$7.52 to $9.38 212,869 5.9 Years 7.91 212,869 7.91
$9.391t0 $11.26 268,000 6.7 Years 9.69 268,000 9.69
$11.27t0 $13.13 660,430 5.3 Years 11.63 571,715 11.63
$13.14 to $15.01 540,633 8.6 Years 13.85 226,512 13.62
$15.02 to $16.89 1,621,118 9.4 Years 16.28 198,781 15.20
$16.90 to $18.77 305,601 6.7 Years 17.54 219,223 17.64

Restricted Stock Grants

Cimarex has an employee retention program whereby restricted stock grants are awarded to
certain employees. Cimarex awarded 643,800 restricted shares in December 2002. There were 674,973
shares of restricted stock outstanding as of December 31, 2002. The restrictions related to these stock
grants are associated with the continued employment of the grantee for one to five years from the date of
the original grant, at which time these shares will vest and there is a three year required holding period
subsequent to vesting. The restricted stock agreements provide that, during the vesting period, if we pay a
dividend on our common stock, the grantees will be entitled to receive such dividend. We do not currently
intend to pay dividends on our common stock.

Compensation expense for restricted shares is based upon the market price of the restricted stock
multiplied by the number of shares of restricted stock granted. Compensation cost is being recognized
over the associated vesting period. For the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded compensation
expense of $0.2 million.

Stockholder Rights Plan

Cimarex has a stockholder rights plan. The plan is designed to improve the ability of our board to
protect the interests of our stockholders in the event of an unsolicited takeover attempt.

For every outstanding share of Cimarex common stock, there exists one purchase right (the
Right). Each Right represents a right to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock of the Company. The Rights will become exercisable only in the event a
person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15 percent or more of our common stock, or a person or
group commences a tender offer or exchange offer that, if successfully consummated, would result in
such person or group beneficially owning 15 percent or more of our common stock. The purchase price
for each one one-hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock pursuant to the exercise of a Right is $60.00,
subject to adjustment in certain cases to prevent dilution.
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Cimarex generally will be entitled to redeem the Rights under certain circumstances at $0.01 per

Right at any time prior to the close of business on the tenth business day after there has been a public
announcement of the acquisition of the beneficial ownership by any person or group of 15 percent or
more of our common stock. The Rights may not be exercised until our board’s right to redeem the stock
has expired. Unless redeemed earlier, the Rights expire on February 23, 2012.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted net earnings per common share for the years ended
December 31, 2002, September 30, 2001 and 2000 and the three months ended December 31, 2001 are
presented in the table below (in thousands, except per share data):

Years Ended Three Months
Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001

Basic earnings per share:
Income available to

common stockholders 3 39,819 S 35253 S 57,386 § 4,479
Weighted average basic

share outstanding 30,239 26,391 26,591 26,591
Basic earnings per share $ 132 % 133 § 216§ 0.17

Diluted earnings per share:
Income available to

common stockholders $ 39819 § 35253 $ 57,386 $§ 4,479
Weighted average basic
shares outstanding 30,239 26,591 26,591 26,591

Incremental shares assuming
the exercise of stock

options 78 — — —
Weighted average diluted

shares outstanding 30,317 26,591 26,591 26,591
Diluted earnings per share $ 131§ 133 8% 216 § 0.17

There were stock options outstanding for 3,632,087 shares of Cimarex common stock at
December 31, 2002. The weighted average common shares of diluted earnings per share calculation for
the year ended December 31, 2002 excludes the incremental effect related to outstanding stock options
exercisable for 1,516,401 shares of Cimarex common stock whose exercise price is in excess of the
average price of Cimarex’s stock of $15.66 for the period the options were outstanding and therefore were
antidilutive.

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Cimarex maintains and sponsors contributory health care plans and a contributory 401(k) plan.
Cimarex employees participate in these plans and costs related to these plans were $1.9 million, $1.1
million, $1.0 million and $0.3 million in the years ended December 31, 2002, September 30, 2001 and
2000 and the three months ended December 31, 2001, respectively.
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Prior to October 1, 2001, Cimarex participated in H&P’s centralized treasury and cash processes.
Cash receipts and disbursements were initially received or paid by H&P and through September 30, 2001
were recorded as a distribution to H&P in the statements of stockholders’ equity. Effective October 1,
2001, cash receipts and disbursements were recorded as amounts due to or from H&P. Amounts
outstanding under this arrangement incurred interest at an annual rate of 5.38 percent computed on a daily
balance. The 5.38 percent is the fixed effective rate charged on H&P’s borrowing facility. The debt
balance were paid to H&P prior to September 30, 2002. Interest expense on the debt in 2002 was
approximately $0.5 million. At December 31, 2001, Cimarex had $13.1 million due to H&P related to
net cash advances, payroll and allocated administrative services since October 1, 2001.

H&P also provides contract drilling services through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Helmerich &
Payne International Drilling Company, for Cimarex. Drilling costs of approximately $1.4 million,
$4.5 million, $3.0 million and $0.3 million were incurred by Cimarex related to such services for the
years ended December 31, 2002, September 30, 2001 and 2000 and the three months ended December 31,
2001, respectively.

Additionally, in the year ended December 31, 2002 and the three months ended December 31,
2001, non-cash distributions of $2.9 million and $1.0 million, respectively, were made to H&P pursuant
to the tax sharing agreement (see Note 6).

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Cimarex operates in the oil and gas industry, and is comprised of an exploration and production
segment and a natural gas marketing segment. Exploration and production activities include the
exploration for and development of productive oil and gas properties located primarily in Oklahoma,
Kansas, Texas and Louisiana. The natural gas marketing segment markets most of the natural gas
produced by the exploration and production segment as well as natural gas produced by third parties.
Each reportable segment is a strategic business unit, which is managed separately as an autonomous
business. Operating profit before income taxes is the measurement used to evaluate the segments.
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Summarized financial information of Cimarex’s reportable segments for the years ended
December 31, 2002, September 30, 2001 and 2000 and the three months ended December 31, 2001 is
shown in the following table (in thousands):

DD&A and
Reduction in
Carrying Additiens
Value of Oil to Long-
External Operating and Gas Lived
Sales Profit Properties Assets

Year Ended December 31,

2002:
Exploration and Production 149,377 ; 650,243 419,026
Natural Gas Marketing 60,193 24,043 409
Total $ 209,570 $ 61,555 § 49,231 3 674,286 $ 419,435
Year Ended September 30,
2001:
Exploration and Production § 216,667 $ 51,638  §$ 127,611 $ 231,606 S 101,319
Natural Gas Marketing 100,111 5,254 170 14,606 269
Teotal $ 316,778 § 56,892 $ 127,781 $ 246,212 $ 101,588
Year Ended September 30,
2000:
Exploration and Production $ 156,114 S 87,889 § 41,540 S 264,763 § 72,625
Natural Gas Marketing 80,907 5,271 164 21,327 175
Total $ 237,021 $ 93,160 § 41,704 $ 286,090 $ 72,800

Three Months Ended
December 31, 2001:
Exploration and

Production $ 25,055 % 6,694 § 8,927 § 239,882 § 14,834
Natural Gas Marketing 14,541 459 45 12,084 178
Total $ 39,596 §$ 7,153 % 8972 % 251,966 § 15,012
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The following table reconciles segment operating profit (loss) per the above table to income
before taxes as reported on the consolidated statements of operations (in thousands).

Three Months
Year Ended Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001
Segment operating profit
including depreciation,
depletion and amortization $ 61,555 S 56,892 $ 93,160 S 7,153
Unallocated amounts:
Other revenue (loss) (63} — — 198
General and administrative expense
allocated from H&P — (3,839) (2.940) —
Interest expense, net {71 1,785 (155) 98)
$ 61,379 $ 54,838 $ 90,065 $ 7,253

Most of our accounts receivable balances are uncollateralized and result from transactions with
other companies in the oil and gas industry. This concentration of customers may impact our overall
credit risk because our customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions
within the industry.

12. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION (in thousands)

Three Months
For the Years Ended Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest (net of amounts
capitalized) $ 69 $ 3,358 $ 15§ 55
Income taxes (net of refunds
received) S 14 $ 30670 $ 20972 S —

In connection with the acquisition of Key for $237.3 million, we acquired assets with a fair value
of $367.5 million and assumed liabilities of $130.2 million. This acquisition was a non-cash transaction
except for the cash and cash equivalents of $2.1 million received from Key as more fully described in
Note 4.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Kansas Ad Valorem Settlement

In 1997, Cimarex was assessed approximately $6.7 million of Kansas ad valorem taxes which had
been reimbursed to Cimarex by interstate pipelines transporting natural gas to end users for the period
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from October 1983 through June 1988. In fiscal 1997, based on the assessment, natural gas revenues were
reduced by $2.7 million and interest expense was increased by $4.0 million. In March 1998,
approximately $6.1 million of the unpaid assessment was placed in an escrow account pending resolution
of this matter. Since March 1998, the escrow account and the related liability continued to accrue interest
income and interest expense of approximately $1.0 million.

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission approved settlements between Cimarex and three of
the pipelines. The last of these settlements was finalized in May 2001. Cimarex paid approximately $3.9
million out of its escrow account for the settlement of all three pipeline proceedings. The three
settlements were approximately $3.1 million less than the amount Cimarex accrued for this liability. The
impact of these settlements in May 2001 was to increase natural gas revenues by approximately
$1.1 million, recuce interest expense by approximately $2.0 million and reduce the liability by
approximately $3.1 million. In June 2002, the remaining two proceedings were settled for approximately
$12,000. No amounts are outstanding at December 31, 2002 and all escrow accounts have been closed.

Litigation

Cimarex is a defendant to certain claims relating to drainage of gas from two properties that it
operates. The royalty owner plaintiffs have filed suit on behalf of themselves and a class of similarly
situated royalty owners in two 640-acre-spacing units. The plaintiffs allege that the two units have
suffered approximately 12 Bcf of gross gas drainage. Although the plaintiffs have not specified in their
pleadings the amount of damages alleged, the plaintiffs have orally stated that the royalty owner class has
sustained actual damages of approximately $6.2 million exclusive of interest and costs. Cimarex estimates
that the share of such alleged damages attributable to its working interest ownership would total
approximately $1.0 million exclusive of interests and costs. Plaintiffs further allege that, as a former
operator, Cimarex is liable for all damages attributable to the drainage. Cimarex believes that its liability,
if any, should not exceed its working interest share of any actual damages attributable to the alleged
drainage. In the event that Cimarex is held liable for the full amount of any actual damages, Cimarex will
seek contribution, indemnification and/or other appropriate relief from all other working interest owners
for their portion of the alleged drainage that is attributable to the interest of those other owners.

Cimarex has other various litigation matters in the normal course of business, none of which are
material, individually or in aggregate. We are also subject to certain litigation items as plaintiffs that
could result in potential gains between $1-$2 million, net to our interest.

Leases

Cimarex has noncancelable operating leases for office and parking space in Denver and Tulsa and
for small district and field offices. Rental expense for the operating leases totaled $0.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002, $0.3 million and $0.3 million for the years ended September 30, 2001 and
2000, respectively, and $0.1 million for the three months ended December 31, 2001.
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The following table summarizes the future minimum lease payments under all noncancelable

operating lease obligations.

Year Ending December 31,

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008 and thereafter

Transportation and Gas Deliveries

Future
Minimum Lease
Payments

(In thousands)

1,646
1,674
1,689
1,570
1,476
1,997

10,052

CESI has two firm transportation contracts to transport a total of 16,000 MMBtus per day, at a
weighted average cost of $0.10 per MMBtu through September 30, 2003. The delivery commitment is
elected annually by CESI and the delivery price is adjusted by the pipeline at the same time. This

commitment expires in October 2009.

CESI also has firm sales contracts to deliver fixed volumes of gas based on an index price. These

contracts vary in length from three months to one year.
obligation to deliver approximately 4.2 Bef of natural gas.

Other

As of December 31, 2002, Cimarex had an

The Company also has commitments on oil and gas wells approved for drilling or in the process
of being drilled at December 31, 2002 of approximately $10.2 million, $1.6 million of seismic
commitments and $2.9 million of other miscellancous fixed asset commitments.

Parental Guarantees

Cimarex has approximately $7.0 million of parental guarantees outstanding. These guarantee the
credit of various CESI agreements and are for the benefit of counterparties from which CESI purchases

gas.
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14. SUPPLEMENTAL OIL AND GAS DISCLOSURES

Oil and Gas Operations — The following tables contain direct revenue and cost information
relating to our oil and gas exploration and production activities for the periods indicated. We have no
long-term supply or purchase agreements with governments or authorities in which we act as producer.
Income taxes related to our oil and gas operations are computed using the statutory tax rate for the period.

Three Months
Years Ended Ended
December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2001
(In thousands, except per Mcfe data)
Oil and gas revenues from production $ 149,382 $ 216,667 $ 156,114 $ 24,971
Less operating costs and income taxes:
Depletion 48,272 48,931 40,955 8,792
Reduction to carrying value of oil and
gas properties — 78,082 — —
Production 19,427 13,091 10,687 4,197
Taxes other than income 13,154 18,965 12,092 2,559
Income taxes 25,356 20,574 33,515 3,357
106,209 179,643 97,249 18,905
Resulits of operations from oil and gas
producing activities S 43,173 S 37,024 $ 58,865 S 6,066
Amortization rate per Mcfe $ 1.00 $ 1.03 S 0.78 $ 0.77

Costs Incurred — The following table sets forth the capitalized costs incurred in our oil and gas

production, exploration, and development activities (in thousands):

Year Ended Three Months
Ended

December 31, September 30, December 31,

2002 2001 2000 2001
Costs incurred during the year:
Acquisition of properties

Proved $ 286,041 $ 738§ 105 % —
Unproved 16,008 18,612 11,040 850
Exploration 29,181 44,166 43,833 7,296
Development 37,273 41,459 18,843 6,279
Oil and gas expenditures 368,503 104,975 73,821 14,425
Property sales (151) (977) (1,904) —
3 368,352 $ 103,998 § 71,917 § 14,425
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Costs Not Being Amortized — The following table summarizes oil and gas property costs not
being amortized at December 31, 2002, by year that the costs were incurred (in thousands):

2002 § 16,844
2001 5,137
2000 1,121
1999 and prior 839

s 23041

We expect the majority of these costs to be evaluated, and to become subject to amortization
within the next five years.

Oil and Gas Reserve Information (Unaudited) — Proved oil and gas reserve quantities are based
on estimates prepared by Cimarex in accordance with guidelines established by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). Ryder Scott Company, L.P., independent petroleum engineers, have
reviewed the proved reserve estimates associated with approximately 80 percent of the discounted future
net cash flows before income taxes. Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc., independent petroleum
engineers, prepared the proved reserve estimates as of September 30, 2001 and 2000. The estimates of
proved reserves as of December 31, 2001 were prepared by H&P.

Proved reserves are estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids which
geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years
from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. Proved developed reserves are
those which are expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating
methods. There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves,
projecting future rates of production and the timing of development expenditures. The following reserve
data at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and September 30, 2001 and 2000 represents estimates only and
should not be construed as being exact. All of our reserves are located in the continental or offshore
United States.

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

September 30, 2001 September 30, 2000

Gas Gil Gas 0il Gas Qil Gas Qil
(MMcf) (MBbl) (MMcf) (MMbl) (MMcf) (MMb)) (MMecf) (MMbl)
Total proved reserves -
Developed and
undeveloped
Beginning of year 212,326 5,304 216,337 5,932 262,498 6,305 239,620 4,834
Revisions of previous
estimates 31,153 1,094 1,260 (432) (17,018) (700) 17,363 1,317
Extensions and 10
discoveries 21,064 643 4,903 12,748 1,145 52,569 1,119
Purchases of reserves 95,388 9,155 — — 496 — 242 1
Production (41,300) (1,171 (10,174) (206) (42,387) (818) (46,923) (880)
Sales of properties (4) — — — — — (373) (86)
End of year 318,627 15,025 212,326 5,304 216,337 5,932 262,498 6,305
Proved developed reserves 318,452 14,765 211,874 4,607 213,931 5,213 229,992 6,068
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Standardized Measure Of Future Net Cash Flows (Unaudited) — The “Standardized Measure of
Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Oil and Gas Reserves” (Standardized Measure) is

a disclosure requirement under FASB Statement No. 69, Disclosures About Oil and Gas Producing
Activities. The Standardized Measure does not purport to present the fair market value of a company’s
proved oil and gas reserves. This would require consideration of expected future economic and operating
conditions, which are not taken into account in calculating the Standardized Measure.

Under the Standardized Measure, future cash inflows were estimated by applying year-end prices
to the estimated future production of year-end proved reserves. Future cash inflows were reduced by
estimated future production and development costs based on year-end costs to determine pre-tax cash
inflows. Future income taxes were computed by applying the statutory tax rate to the excess of pre-tax
cash inflows over Cimarex’s tax basis in the associated proved oil and gas properties. Tax credits and
permanent differences were also considered in the future income tax calculation. Future net cash inflows
after income taxes were discounted using a 10 percent annual discount rate to arrive at the Standardized
Measure.

The following summary sets forth the Company’s Standardized Measure (in thousands):

December 31, December 31, September 30, September 30,
2002 2001 2001 2000
Cash inflows $ 1,742,435 % 560,439 § 467,886 S 1,377,922
Production costs (511,168) (189,216) (167,914) (279.816)
Development costs (6,909) (3.961) (6.789) (38,082)
Income tax expense (361,423) (89,562} (81,253) (331,672)
Net cash flows 862,935 277,700 211,930 728,352
10% annual discount rate (329,076) (95,135) (67,891) (240,281)
Standardized measure of discounted future
net cash flows $ 533,859 % 182,565 $ 144,039 S 488,071
Discounted future net cash flows before
income taxes $ 741,209  $ 241,150 S 191,240  $ 680,213
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The following are the principal sources of change in the Standardized Measure (in thousands):

December 31, December 31, September 30, September 30,
2002 2001 2001 2000

Standardized measure, beginning of period S 182,565 S 144,039 $ 488,071 S 232,618
Sales, net of production costs (116,801) (18,215) (179,776) (130,898)
Net change in sales prices, net of

production costs 200,935 52,126 (400,679) 261,926
Extensions, discoveries, and improved

recovery, net of future production and

development costs 62,648 9,669 29,387 156,840
Net change in future development costs 4,039 3,691 27,978 (23,407)
Revision of quantity estimates 70,532 (1,305) (15,298) 57,730
Accretion of discount 24,115 19,124 68,021 30,951
Change in income taxes (148,765) (11,385) 160,776 (114,762)
Purchases of reserves in place 297,394 — 619 542
Sales of properties €)) — — (700)
Change in production rates and other (42,802) (15,179) (35,060) 17,231
Standardized measure end of period $ 533,859 S 182,565 $ 144,039 $ 488,071

Impact of Pricing (Unaudited) — The estimates of cash flows and reserve quantities shown above
are based on year-end oil and gas prices, except in those cases where future gas sales are covered by
contracts at specified prices. Fluctuations are largely due to the seasonal pricing nature of natural gas,
supply perceptions for natural gas and significant worldwide volatility in oil prices.

The following average prices were used in determining the Standardized Measure as of:

December 31, December 31, September 30, September 30,
2002 2001 2001 2000
Price per Mcf  § 422 % 223 % 190 $ 5.13
Price per Bbl $ 2856 § 18.10 § 2025 % 30.83

Under SEC rules, companies that follow full cost accounting methods are required to make
quarterly “ceiling test” calculations. Under this test, capitalized costs of oil and gas properties, net of
accumulated DD&A, and deferred income taxes, may not exceed the present value of estimated future net
revenues from proved reserves, discounted at 10 percent, plus the lower of cost or fair market value of
unproved properties, as adjusted for related tax effects and deferred tax revenues. We calculate the
projected income tax effect using the “year-by-year” method for purposes of the supplemental oil and gas
disclosures and use the “short-cut” method for the ceiling test calculation. Application of these rules
during periods of relatively low oil and gas prices, even if of short-term duration, may result in write-
downs.
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1s. UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTAL QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Revenues include gross external sales associated with marketing of $11.2 million, $13.0 million,
$20.0 million and $14.9 million in the respective quarters of calendar 2002; and $28.3 million, $31.5
million, $23.6 million and $16.5 million in the respective quarters of fiscal 2001, which is different from
the presentation in the Form 10-QT and Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2002.

First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands, except for per share data)
Calendar 2002
Revenues $ 34,575 § 46,134 § 51,808 S 77,053
Expenses, net 30,317 36,290 41,878 61,266
Net income $ 4,258 §% 9,844 § 9,930 $§ 15,787
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 0.16 $ 037 % 037 S 0.39
Diluted $ 0.16 $ 037 § 037 § 0.38
First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands, except for per share data)
Fiscal 2001
Revenues $ 86,407 § 106,001 $ 75,985 § 48,384
Expenses, net 58,825 73,525 57,154 92,020
Net income (loss) $ 27,582 §$ 32,476 % 18,831 § (43,636)
Earnings (loss) per common
share:
Basic $ 1.04 § 1.22 8§ 0.71 § (1.64)
Diluted $ 1.04 $ 1.22 § 071 $ (1.64)

The sum of the individual quarterly net income (loss) per common share amounts may not agree
with year-to-date net income (loss) per common share because each period’s computation is based on the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during that period.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee of Cimarex approved the dismissal of Emst &
Young LLP as the Company’s independent auditors effective October 1, 2002.

Emst & Young LLP served as the Company’s independent auditor for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2001 and 2000. Ernst & Young’s reports on the Company’s financial statements for each
of the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of
opinion and were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles.

During the two most recent fiscal years of the Company ended September 30, 2001, and the subsequent
interim period through October 1, 2002, there were no disagreements with Ernst & Young LLP within the
meaning of Instruction 4 of Item 304 of Regulation S-K on any matter of accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements if not
resolved to Ernst & Young’s satisfaction would have caused Ernst & Young to make reference to the
subject matter of the disagreements in connection with its report. During the term of Ernst & Young’s

engagement, there were no “reportable events” (as such term is defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation
S-K).

The Board of Directors appointed the firm KPMG LLP to serve as Cimarex’s independent auditor
as of and for the three-month transition period (as such term is defined in Regulation 13A) ended
December 31, 2001 and as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002. KPMG LLP’s engagement
commenced effective October 1, 2002. During Cimarex’s two most recent fiscal years ended September
30, 2001, and the subsequent interim periods, prior to engagement, Cimarex did not consult with KPMG
LLP regarding any of the matters or events set forth in Item 304(a)(2)(i) or (ii) of Regulation S-K.

As part of the registration process for Cimarex, there was discussion among management of
Cimarex and Key and their auditors, Emst & Young LLP and KPMG LLP, respectively. The discussion
related to the initial selection of alternative accounting methods associated with accounting for oil and gas
properties. Ernst & Young LLP, as Cimarex’s independent auditors, and KPMG LLP, as Key’s
independent auditors, were each consulted as to the matter and each agreed with the conclusion that the
full cost method of accounting is an acceptable alternative for accounting for oil and gas properties.

PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF CIMAREX

Information concerning the directors of Cimarex is incorporated by reference from the Cimarex
Energy Co. definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 28, 2003,
to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than April 30, 2003. Information

concerning the executive officers of Cimarex is set forth under [tem 4A in Part [ of this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required under this item is incorporated by reference from the Cimarex Energy Co.
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 28, 2003, to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than April 30, 2003.

67



ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

Information required under this item is incorporated by reference from the Cimarex Energy Co.
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 28, 2003, to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than April 30, 2003.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information required under this item is incorporated by reference from the Cimarex Energy Co.
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 28, 2003, to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than April 30, 2003.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Within 90 days prior to the date of filing this report (the Evaluation Date), and with the
participation of management, Cimarex’s Chief Executive Cfficer and Chief Financial Officer carried out
an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of Cimarex’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c)) to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by Cimarex under the Securities Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms. Based
upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that
Cimarex’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

There were no significant changes in Cimarex’s internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect these controls subsequent to the Evaluation Date.

PART IV
ITEM I5. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS
ON FORM 8-K
Page
(a) (D The following financial statements are included in Item 8 to this 10-K:
Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 39

Consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2002,
September 30, 2001 and 2000 and for the three months ended December 31, 2001

and 2000 40
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2002,
September 30, 2001 and 2000 and for the three months ended December 31, 2001 41
Consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity for the year ended December 31,

2002, the three months ended December 31, 2001, and the years ended September

30,2001 and 2000 42
Notes to consolidated financial statements 43
(2) Financial statement schedules — None

3) Exhibits:

Exhibits not incorporated by reference to a prior filing are designated by an asterisk (*) and are filed
herewith; all exhibits not so designated are incorporated by reference to a prior SEC filing as indicated.
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Exhibits designed by a plus sign (+) are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements
required to be filed herewith pursuant to Item 15.

2.1

3.1

32

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 23, 2002, among Helmerich &
Payne, Inc., Cimarex Energy Co., Mountain Acquisition Co. and Key Production
Company, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4
dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Cimarex Energy Co. filed as Exhibit
3.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, dated May 9, 2002
(Registration No. 333-87948), and incorporated herein by reference.

By-laws of Cimarex Energy Co. filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4, dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-387948) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Specimen Certificate of Cimarex Energy Co. common stock (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to
Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated July 2, 2002 (Registration
No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).

Rights Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2002, by and between Cimarex Energy Co. and
UMB Bank, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to dated May 9, 2002 the Registration Statement on
Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).

Credit Agreement, dated October 2, 2002, among Cimarex Energy Co., the lenders party
thereto, Bank One, NA, as Administrative Agent, Royal Bank of Canada, as Co-
Documentation Agent, Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Co-Documentation
Agent, and Banc One Capital Markets, Inc., as Lead Arranger and Sole Book Runner.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2002, file no. 001-31446).

Distribution Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2002, by and between Helmerich &
Payne, Inc. and Cimarex Energy Co. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement on
Form S-4 dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by
reference).

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2002, by and between Helmerich &
Payne, Inc. and Cimarex Energy Co. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on
Form S-4 dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by
reference).

Employee Benefits Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2002, by and between

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Cimarex Energy Co. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated
herein by reference).
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10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

First Amendment to Employee Benefits Agreement, dated August 2, 2002, by and among
Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Cimarex Energy Co. and Key Production Company, Inc. (filed as
Exhibit 10.3.1 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated
August 2, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement dated September 1, 1992 between Key Production Company, Inc.
and F.H. Merelli (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated
May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).+

Employment Agreement, dated September 7, 1999, by and between Paul Korus and Key
Production Company, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4
dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).+

Employment Agreement, dated October 25, 1993, by and between Thomas E. Jorden and
Key Production Company, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Registration Statement on
Form S-4 dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by
reference).+

Employment Agreement, dated February 2, 1994, by and between Stephen P. Bell and Key
Production Company, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4
dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).+

Employment Agreement, dated March 11, 1994, by and between Joseph R. Albi and Key
Production Company, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4
dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).+

Change of Control Agreement, dated April 11, 2002, by and between Steven R. Shaw and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4
dated May 9, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated herein by reference).+

Key Production Company, Inc. Income Continuance Plan, dated effective June 1, 1994
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Key Production Company, Inc.'s Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, file no. 0-17162).+

Employment Agreement, dated March 20, 2002, by and between David Honeyfield and
Key Production Company, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Amendment No. | to Registration
Statement on Form S-4 dated July 2, 2002 (Registration No. 333-87948) and incorporated
herein by reference).+

Amended and Restated 2002 Stock Incentive Plan of Cimarex Energy Co. * +

Cimarex Energy Co. Supplemental Savings Plan (amended and restated, effective March 3,
2003). * +
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21.1

23.1
232
233
234
24.1

99.1

99.2

(b)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant*

Consent of KPMG LLP.*

Consent of Emst & Young LLP.*

Consent of Ryder Scott Company, LP.*

Consent of Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc.*
Power of Attorney of directors of the Registrant. *

Certification of F.H. Merelli, Chief Executive Officer of Cimarex Energy Co. pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.*

Certification of Paul Korus, Chief Financial Officer of Cimarex Energy Co. pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.*

Form 8-K filed October 4, 2002, reporting a change in Registrant’s independent auditors effective
October 1, 2002.

Form §8-K filed November 15, 2002, announcing financial and operating results for the third
quarter and first nine months of 2002.

Form 8-K filed December 11, 2002, announcing the issuance of 605,800 shares of restricted stock

and the grant of non-qualified stock options representing the right to acquire 1,210,800 shares of
Registrant’s common stock to certain management and key employees of Registrant.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 18, 2003
CIMAREX ENERGY CO.

By: /s/F.H. Merelli
F.H. Merelli
Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ F.H. Merrelli Director, Chairman, President and Chief March 18, 2003
F.H. Merelli Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Paul Korus Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and March 18, 2003
Paul Korus Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ David W. Honeyfield Controller, Chief Accounting Officer and March 18. 2003
David W. Honeyfield Corporate Secretary
(Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ F.H. Merelli Director March 18. 2003
Attorney-in-Fact
Glenn A. Cox
/s/ F.H. Merelli Director March 18, 2003

Attorney-in-Fact
Cortlandt S. Dietler

/s/ F.H. Merelli Director March 18. 2003
Attorney-in-Fact
Hans Helmerich

/s/ F.H. Merelli Director March 18. 2003
Attorney-in-Fact
David A. Hentschel

/s{ E . H. Merelli Director March 18, 2003
Attorney-in-Fact
Paul D. Holleman

/s/ F.H. Merelli Director March 18, 2003
Attorney-in-Fact
L.F. Rooney, III

/s/ F.H. Merelli Director March 18, 2003
Attorney-in-Fact
Michael J. Sullivan
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/s/ F.H. Merelli Director March 18, 2003

Attorney-in-Fact
L. Paul Teague
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